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(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1764

NB
(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund)
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UFJ

https://www.sc.mufg.jp/products/trust/index.html

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

UFJ
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2017 18

LLC

Neuberger Berman Investment
Advisers LLC

)
2003 26

)

() 2023
2023 480,000 6,960
144.99 480,000 144.99
1,000,000 1,000,000 4,499
)
2003 26
2009 27

)
2023

EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40

Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)

1925
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TOPIX
JPX JPX
MSCI-KOKUSAI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
MSCI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
NOMURA-BPI
FTSE
FTSE Fixed Income LLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC
FTSE Fixed Income LLC
JP GBI-EM
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
3.3
0.015
15,000
0.65 0.30 0.35
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2023
14,552,933.54 27.65
10,863,997.49 20.64
7,995,336.52 15.19
5,766,692.90 10.96
5,681,795.38 10.80
2,546,651.35 4.84
2,379,063.14 4.52
2,273,862.18 4.32
1,630,429.67 3.10
185,435.52 0.35
138,461.86 0.26
107,081.65 0.20
84,008.31 0.16
54,205,749.51 103.01
-1,582,484.66 -3.01
52,623,264.85
100.00
7,629,847,171
2023
NGG FINANCE V/R 2073
5.625 2,378,000 | 156.27 | 3,716,084.45|120.78| 2,872,106.67 5.46
06/18/73/GBP/ 18
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2172
3.875 2,900,000 | 116.77| 3,386,414.45| 97.37| 2,823,780.73| 5.37
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 14
ELECTRICITE DE 2171
6 2,100,000 | 148.78 | 3,124,473.52|115.26| 2,420,525.71 4.60
V/R /PERP//GBP/ 29
AUSNET SERVI V/R 2081
1.625 2,452,000 81.11| 1,988,696.07| 92.73| 2,273,862.18| 4.32
03/11/81/EUR/ 11
VODAFONE GROUP 2081
4.125 2,860,000 79.82| 2,282,934.55| 79.35| 2,269,410.00| 4.31
PL V/R 06/04/81
ENBW ENERGIE V/R 2081
1.375 2,500,000 84.78| 2,119,563.49| 86.73| 2,168,362.48| 4.12
08/31/81/EUR/ 31
BP CAPITAL MAR 2172
3.625 2,276,000 112.65| 2,563,865.29| 94.84| 2,158,552.85| 4.10
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 22
ENBW ENERGIE V/R 2079
1.125 2,000,000 91.29| 1,825,893.49|102.00| 2,039,995.42 3.88
11/05/79/EUR/ 11
SOUTHERN CO V/R 2081
1.875 2,329,000] 102.79| 2,394,014.88| 85.19| 1,984,183.67 3.77
09/15/81/EUR/ 15
TOTALENERGIES 2172
10 1.625 2,089,000 91.52| 1,911,853.59| 90.55| 1,891,652.15| 3.59
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 25
VATTENFALL A V/R 2083
11 6.875 1,500,000| 126.15| 1,892,324.93|124.78| 1,871,756.37 3.56
08/17/83/GBP/ 17
BRITISH 2081
12 | TELECOMMU V/R 4.25 1 2 2,018,000 89.23| 1,800,641.90| 88.01| 1,775,973.69 3.37
11/23/81
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BAYER AG V/R 2082

13 5.375 1,600,000 96.59| 1,545,377.78|100.92| 1,614,679.99| 3.07
03/25/82/EUR/ 25
ENBRIDGE INC V/R 2077

14 5.5 1,809,000 102.69| 1,857,751.22| 89.01| 1,610,201.57| 3.06
07/15/77 15
VEOLIA ENVIRON 2172

15 2.5 1,600,000 115.73| 1,851,733.83| 90.00| 1,440,057.15| 2.74
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 20
ELIA GROUP SA/ 2172

16 5.85 1,300,000 | 105.54| 1,372,069.03|109.37| 1,421,845.74| 2.70
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 15
ARKEMA V/R 2171

17 2.75 1,300,000 | 108.12| 1,405,586.50| 104.74| 1,361,567.99| 2.59
/PERP//EUR/ 17
VODAFONE GRO V/R 2084

18 6.5 1,200,000 | 106.98| 1,283,763.10|109.61| 1,315,368.94| 2.50
08/30/84/EUR/ 30
ORANGE SA V/R 2171

19 1.75 1,200,000 89.09| 1,069,135.27| 91.47| 1,097,633.27| 2.09
/PERP//EUR/ 10 15
CMS ENERGY CORP 2050

20 3.75 1,405,000 | 100.35| 1,409,943.68| 77.18| 1,084,379.00| 2.06
V/R 12/01/50 12
BAYER AG V/R 2074

21 3.75 1,013,000 92.60 938,022.98] 105.91| 1,072,898.38| 2.04
07/01/74/EUR/
NGG FINANCE V/R 2082

22 2.125 1,102,000 81.08 893,550.14| 93.69| 1,032,459.66| 1.96
09/05/82/EUR/
CMS ENERGY CORP 2050

23 4.75 1,115,000 | 100.00| 1,115,000.00| 86.22 961,353.00| 1.83
V/R 06/01/50
ELM FOR FIRMEN 2171

24 3.75 877,000 | 101.49 890,091.10 | 104.08 912,793.87| 1.73
V/R /PERP//EUR/
VEOLIA ENVIRON 2172

25 2 900,000 | 81.16 730,457.05| 90.60 815,365.83| 1.55
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 15
BRITISH TELE V/R 2083

26 8.375 600,000 | 125.48 752,852.71 ] 124.80 748,827.66 | 1.42
12/20/83/GBP/ 12 20
BAYER AG V/R 2079

27 2.375 700,000 | 85.08 595,547.44 | 101.19 708,331.74| 1.35
11/12/79/EUR/ 11 12
KONINKLIJKA FR 2171

28 2.85 696,000 | 121.53 845,842.93| 98.19 683,402.39| 1.30
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12 10
SSE PLC V/R 2171

29 3.125 677,000 | 99.11 670,992.46| 98.77 668,681.60 | 1.27
/PERP//EUR/ 14
ENTERPRISE 2078

30 |PRODUC V/R 5.375 5 721,000 | 100.00 721,000.00| 82.73 596,461.53| 1.13
02/15/78
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2022 2023
2018 28 62,318,176.00 9,035,512,338 10.44 1,514
2019 28 47,211,429.00 6,845,185,091 10.02 1,453
2020 29 29,189,271.00 4,232,152,402 10.61 1,538
2021 28 25,004,453.00 3,625,395,640 10.62 1,540
2022 28 16,556,208.00 2,400,484,598 9.87 1,431
2023 28 16,402,183.00 2,378,152,513 9.09 1,318
2022 14,597,382.45 2,116,474,481 9.17 1,330
14,410,200.00 2,089,334,898 9.01 1,306
13,695,197.12 1,985,666,630 8.57 1,243
10 13,287,745.14 1,926,590,168 8.68 1,259
11 13,893,085.95 2,014,358,532 8.94 1,296
12 13,767,153.00 1,996,099,513 8.93 1,295
2023 14,386,124.30 2,085,844,162 9.17 1,330
16,402,183.00 2,378,152,513 9.09 1,318
16,912,887.81 2,452,199,604 9.01 1,306
17,501,304.58 2,537,514,151 9.03 1,309
18,107,962.64 2,625,473,503 9.05 1,312
18,355,600.76 2,661,378,554 9.06 1,314
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2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2020 29 5,208,004,048 10,031
2021 28 4,213,414,408 9,957
2022 28 3,088,746,795 9,253
2023 28 4,962,964 ,239 8,302
2022 2,885,170,793 8,565
3,060,033,480 8,395

3,681,349,894 7,968

10 3,894,134,281 8,056

11 4,342,275,860 8,262

12 4,488,726,787 8,222

2023 4,888,613,563 8,403
4,962,964,239 8,302

4,991,438,198 8,197

4,986,029,451 8,183

5,022,120,729 8,165

4,952,876,829 8,128
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0.27 39 225
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
2023 0.03 4 25
0.03 4 25
0.03 4 25
0.03 4 25
2.19 318 1,825

7.10 5.38

-0.57 -3.28

9.48 6.78

3.49 2.25

-3.67 -4.06

-4.26 -7.04

100x
10.00
10,000
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6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5.,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
224,384 2,186,392 2,751,993
(224,384) (2,186,392) (2,751,993)
201,749 599,424 2,354,318
(201,749) (599, 424) (2,354,318)
161,145 837,800 1,677,663
(161,145) (837,800) (1,677,663)
387,501 260,401 1,804,763
(387,501) (260,401) (1,804,763)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270, 488) (741,514)
32,615 254,925 519,204
(32,615) (254,925) (519,204)
10,045 106,107 423,142
(10,045) (106,107) (423,142)
10,828 100,156 333,814
(10,828) (100, 156) (333,814)
308,893 44,874 597,833
(308,893) (44,874) (597,833)
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2023 28
NB
2023 28
54,144,248 48,950,845 7,097,383
2,116,433 306,862
432,719 432,841 62,758
145 21
1,725,004 250,108
824,086 119,484
207,936 30,149
25,812 3,742
54,283,102 7,870,507
57,887 8,393
43,659 6,330
21,820 3,164
20,104 2,915
12,386 1,79
11,454 1,661
159 23
1,266,389 183,614
12,276 1,780
1,446,134 209,675
52,836,968 7,660,832
65,809,619 9,541,737
(12,972,651) (1,880,905)
52,836,968 7,660,832
4,962,964,239
597,833 8,302
16,402,183
1,804,763 9.09 1,318
144.99
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NB
2023 28
7,677 1,540,724 223,390
174 25
1,540,898 223,415
267,047 38,719
267,047 38,719
135,028 19,578
26,751 3,879
20,542 2,978
14,998 2,175
9,997 1,449
336 49
20,242 2,935
761,988 110,481
778,910 112,934
(1,672,115) (242,440)
(354,477) (51,396)
(2,026,592) (293, 836)
(2,931,164) (424,989)
(1,546,422) (224,216)
(4,477,586) (649, 205)
(6,504,178) (943,041)
(5.725,268) (830,107)
144.99
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308,893
387,501
44,874
260,401
144.99

2023 28
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778,910 112,934
(2,026,592) (293, 836)
(4,477,586) (649, 205)
(5,725,268) (830,107)

(938,821) (136,120)

(574,207) (83,254)
(1,513,028) (219,374)
18,443,339 2,674,100
3,520,848 510,488
(2,894,806) (419,718)
(2,368,183) (343,363)
16,701,198 2,421,507
9,462,902 1,372,026
43,374,066 6,288,806
52,836,968 7,660,832
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NB
2023 28
(5,725,268) (830,107)
(25,831,687) (3,745,336)
16,031,752 2,324,444
56,972 8,260
1,672,115 242,440
2,931,164 424,989
1,580,683 229,183
(153,616) (22,273)
(25,812) (3,742)
(19,496) (2,827)
(2,388) (346)
(2,503) (363)
159 23
3,193 463
3,039 441
233 34
7,941 1,151
(9,473,519) (1,373,566)
20,247,781 2,935,726
(6,956,147) (1,008,572)
(1,513,028) (219,374)
11,778,606 1,707,780
2,305,087 334,215
244,187 35,405
2,549,274 369,619
144.99
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@

144.99

28
2023 28 2023 28
9,253 9.87 1,431
160 0.18 26
(811) (0.60) 87)
(651) (0.42) (61)
(300) (0.36) (52)
8,302 9.09 1,318
(7.06) 4.21)
4,962,964 16,402 2,378,126
1.86 1.86
1.89 1.92
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NB
2023 28
(@D)
92.6
4.1
4.1
AusNet Services Holdings Pty Ltd.
2,452,000 1.63% due 03/11/81 4.1 2,182,210
2,182,210
2,182,210
2.4
2.4
Solvay S.A.
1,200,000 2.50% due 12/02/25(1 2.2 1,141,560
100,000 4.25% due 12/04/23(D) 0.2 104,838
1,246,398
1,246,398
4.9
4.9
Enbridge, Inc.
1,809,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 3.2 1,671,066
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.6 343,455
Rogers Communications, Inc.
549,000 5.25% due 03/15/82 0.9 490,669
Transcanada Trust
100,000 5.88% due 08/15/76 0.2 95,004
2,600,194
2,600,194
21.9
21.9
Arkema S.A.
500,000 1.50% due 10/21/25(1) 0.9 464,764
1,300,000 2.75% due 06/17/24(1 2.5 1,320,885
Electricite de France S.A.
400,000 3.38% due 06/15/30(1) 0.6 324,301
100,000 5.88% due 01/22/29(D) 0.2 102,312
2,100,000 6.00% due 01/29/26(D 4.4 2,326,264
Engie S.A.
400,000 1.63% due 04/08/25(1) 0.7 390,434
Orange S.A.
600,000 1.75% due 07/15/28(1) 1.0 526,813
TotalEnergies SE
2,400,000 1.63% due 10/25/27(1 4.0 2,093,936
215,000 1.75% due 04/04/24(D) 0.4 218,168
100,000 2.71% due 05/05/23(D 0.2 105,006
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(@)
Veolia Environnement S.A.
900,000 2.00% due 11/15/27(1) 1.5 792,193
500,000 2.25% due 01/20/26(1) 0.9 477,686
2,800,000 2.50% due 01/20/29(1) 4.6 2,431,968
11,574,730
11,574,730
15.1
15.1
Bayer AG
1,300,000 2.38% due 11/12/79 2.4 1,268,320
1,013,000 3.75% due 07/01/74 2.0 1,038,029
1,600,000 5.38% due 03/25/82 2.9 1,535,095
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
100,000 3.50% due 04/23/75 0.2 97,566
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
2,000,000 1.13% due 11/05/79 3.7 1,969,136
2,500,000 1.38% due 08/31/81 3.9 2,061,315
7,969,461
7,969,461
1.0
1.0
ENI SpA
100,000 2.00% due 02/11/27(1) 0.2 89,273
Terna - Rete Elettrica Nazionale
500,000 2.38% due 11/09/27(1) 0.8 441,401
530,674
530,674
0.3
0.3
Holcim Finance Luxembourg S.A.
131,000 3.00% due 04/05/24(1) 0.3 134,237
134,237
134,237
9.5
9.5
ELM BV for Firmenich International S.A.
877,000 3.75% due 09/03/25(1) 1.7 886,863
Iberdrola International BV
100,000 2.25% due 01/28/29(1) 0.1 86,696
Koninklijke FrieslandCampina NV
696,000 2.85% due 09/10/25(1) 1.2 666,142
Stedin Holding NV
100,000 1.50% due 12/31/26(1) 0.2 89,600
TenneT Holding BV
100,000 2.37% due 07/22/25(1) 0.2 99,157
Volkswagen International Finance NV
500,000 3.75% due 12/28/27(1) 0.9 460,689
2,900,000 3.88% due 06/14/27(1) 5.2 2,729,145
5,018,292
5,018,292
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(@)
0.1
0.1
EDP - Energias de Portugal S.A.
100,000 1.88% due 03/14/82 0.1 78,742
78,742
78,742
0.4
0.4
Red Electrica Corp. S.A.
200,000 4.63% due 05/07/28(1) 0.4 208,537
208,537
208,537
1.1
1.1
Vattenfall AB
500,000 2.5% due 06/29/83 0.9 501,716
Volvo Treasury AB
100,000 4.85% due 03/10/78 0.2 105,918
607,634
607,634
21.7
21.7
BP Capital Markets PLC
385,000 3.25% due 03/22/26(1) 0.7 376,853
2,276,000 3.63% due 03/22/29(1) 4.0 2,108,037
British Telecommunications PLC
577,000 4.25% due 11/23/81 1.0 507,760
NGG Finance PLC
1,102,000 2.13% due 09/05/82 1.9 992,739
2,378,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 5.3 2,803,786
SSE PLC
677,000 3.13% due 04/14/27(1) 1.2 654,210
303,000 3.74% due 01/14/26(1) 0.6 339,762
582,000 4.00% due 01/21/28(1) 1.1 560,119
Vodafone Group PLC
3,000,000 3.10% due 01/03/79 5.9 3,136,768
11,480,034
11,480,034
10.1
10.1
CMS Energy Corp.
1,405,000 3.75% due 12/01/50 2.1 1,113,111
1,115,000 4.75% due 06/01/50 1.9 998,706
Enterprise Products Operating LLC
721,000 5.38% due 02/15/78 1.1 602,035
Paramount Global
400,000 6.38% due 03/30/62 0.7 343,376
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Q)
Southern Co.

2,016,000 1.88% due 09/15/81 3.2 1,699,884
600,000 4.00% due 01/15/51 1.1 562,590
5,319,702
5,319,702
54,144,248 48,950,845
54,144,248 92.6 48,950,845
7.4 3,886,123
100.0 52,836,968

(7.660,831,990 )

o

144.99
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Goldman Sachs 204,012 2023 20 (222,757) (5,761)  (5,761)

Goldman Sachs 129,379 2023 20 (138,517) (904) (904)
Royal Bank of ) 545 600 2023 20 (1,419,137) 9,974 9,974

Canada

State Street
Bank And 126,689 2023 20 (135,881) (1,130) (1,130)
Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 171,115 2023 20 (182,418) (412) (412)
Trust Co.

Goldman Sachs 333,413 2023 20 (306,492) 7,415 7,415

Goldman Sachs 439,739 2023 20 (414,687) (1,340) (1,340)
Royal Bank of 1,924 2023 20 (255,324) 36 36
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street

Bank And 129,791 2023 20 (104,781) 2,821 2,821

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 134,351 2023 20 (109,926) 1,146 1,146

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 5,897,711 2023 20 (4,960,049) (112,728) (112,728)
Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 92,031 2023 20 (75,760) 227 227

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 1,068,873 2023 20 (997,032) 8,387 8,387

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 1,018,827 2023 20 (930,487) 29,121 29,121

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 1,506,831 2023 20 (1,378,409) 40,696 40,696

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 157,956 2023 20 (145,027) 3,699 3,699

Trust Co.

State Street

Bank And 177,567 2023 20 (161,634) 5,646 5,646

Trust Co.

Westpac

Banking 271,312 2023 20 (249,417) 6,022 6,022

Corporation

Westpac

Banking 1,252,002 2023 20 (1,149,098) 29,772 29,772

Corporation

23,013 2023 20 (21,043) 630 630
87,650 2023 20 (80,581) 1,940 1,940
218,990 2023 20 (199, 340) 6,963 6,963
123,819 2023 20 (113,613) 2,976 2,976
32,957,637 2023 20 (31,203, 383) (231,625) (231,625)

22,649 2023 20 (20,799) 526 526

157,997  (353,900) (195,903)
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Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of

Canada

Royal Bank of

Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of

Canada

12,557,000
80,580,521

4,892,369

4,488,997,870

39,138,945

75,580,075

40,939,618

15,516,663

8,806,263

14,677,104

48,923,680

790,273

4,892,369

19,569,473

8,806,263

740,929

20,000,000

36,203,524

8,806,265

197,823,938

14,677,104

6,687,852

5,870,843

275,819
161,828

2023
2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023
2023

20
20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20
20

(96,030)
(619,791)

(36,634)

(33,831,202)

(301,055)

(599,313)

(315,610)

(122,160)

(65,169)

(113,639)

(388,575)

(5,847)

(37,173)

(150, 854)

(67,753)

(5,782)

(155,525)

(281,933)

(65,895)

(1,563,181)

(111,495)

(51,550)

(44,060)

(35,042, 445)
(21,487,751)
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(3,189)
(24,007)

(461)

(641,124)

(11,675)

(40,501)

(12,916)

(7,435)

(58)

(5,122)

(26,851)

*

(1,000)

(6,164)

(2,643)

(304)

(7,652)

(14,257)

(785)

(100,539)

(2,978)

(2,103)

(653)

16,727
2,955

(3,189)

(24,007)

(461)

(641,124)

(11,675)

(40,501)

(12,916)

(7,435)

(58)

(5.122)

(26,851)

*

(1,000)

(6,164)

(2,643)

(304)

(7,652)

(14,257)

(785)

(100,539)

(2,978)

(2,103)

(653)

16,727
2,955



State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

340,442

138,155

237,226

142,923

112,024

110,909

58,232

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

2023

20

20

20

20

20

20

20
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(44,751,537)

(18,392,831)

(31,730,132)

(18,124,582)

(14,385, 200)

(14,821,943)

(7,885,097)
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9,565 9,565
2,165 2,165
2,625 2,625
8,916 8,916
5,665 5,665
1,321 1,321

(683) (68)

49,939  (912,489) (862,550)




NB

LLC

NB

2012 10 15

UFJ

2023

2021

28

2016 12 16

2017 22
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CIMA



GAAP

946

GAAP

FASB

12
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ASC

GAAP
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2023 28

2023 28
48,950,845 48,950,845
207,936 207,936
49,158,781 49,158,781

2023 28
1,266,389 1,266,389
1,266,389 1,266,389

2023 28
FASB ASC 740

50
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(

FX

2022

2023

2022

2023

2023

)

28

28

28

28

28

73 3,073,240
33
78 3,497,055
)
26,817,858 16,556,208 43,374,066
18,443,339 3,520,848 21,964,187
(2,894,806)  (2,368,183)  (5,262,989)
(938,821) (574,207)  (1,513,028)
(4,992,785) (732,483)  (5,725,268)
36,434,785 16,402,183 52,836,968
333,814 1,677,663 2,011,477
308,893 387,501 696,394
(44,874) (260, 401) (305, 275)
597,833 1,804,763 2,402,596
60.94 9.09
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10.00

10,000
10

2023 28
2023 28 57,887

2017 22

10
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2023 28 MNA
MNA
(&

Goldman Sachs 24,142 (24,142)

Royal Bank of Canada 26,000 (26,000)

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 106,098 (106,098)

Westpac Banking Corporation 51,696 (51,696)

207,936 (207,936)

2023 28 MNA
MNA
(€]

Goldman Sachs 35,201 (24,142) 11,059
Royal Bank of Canada 873,210 (26,000) 847,210
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 191,977 (106,098) 85,879
Westpac Banking Corporation 166,001 (51,696) 114,305
1,266,389 (207,936) 1,058,453

@
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2023 28

207,936 (1,266,389)

2023 28

(423,815) (1,580,683)

721202



2023

0.08
0.07
0.06

28

28

28

10

11

43,659
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0.65
0.30 0.35
2023 28 267,047
28 21,820
2.5
2.5
80,000
2023 28 135,028 2023
12,386
0.015
15,000 2023 28
14,998 2023 28 20,104
0.05
2023 28 20,542 2023
11,454
0.65
2023 28 267,047 2023
180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
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1970

2023 28

LIBOR

LIBOR LIBOR
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LIBOR LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
2022 24
COVID-19
12
13
2023 16
2023 2023 16 1,450,605
403,791 338,697
2023 2023 16 2,026,933
161,250 172,839
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2023

EEl;pmudln United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Saritn:

Erropdmgrd s i securRiod, o valus (oot of L0 SE, 144, 245 LIED AR A5 ES

Gk 2116453

Forsgn currandy, o valos [eoe of LED 832,715 #32.841

A vakds bor wvEment s gl 145
Aozl v bl dor Lnith cid 1,725,054

Erfpreit recavable B2&.0E5

Ureaal ned sppewcistion an fo resnd forsgn comenay eschange mortrects 20T 4

Cher agsen< 25817

Total et 54203 107
Linbiimies:

Papalsl g of Livdty et nd 57827
Asirad ditnibfor's beed LEEAY ]
Apiriagd m ahibem et leei 21530
Acsrusd trusee fees a0, 10

Agorsd custodien and sub-admini sratorsfees 1255

Az B oo Dy s s 11354

Ancryd tisg Erakion foed 159
Lirwgulied depreciation on fore srd foreign osrency exchange corérads L2656, Wy
A YU e 12376
Totel babilbies Lagh 134

Mt Appety atiributabde o Unitholdar 1250 prd ]
anabely of Net Sppets:

P oy capal usD 65,009,519
Curmul #ree fet Sbrraigl and Sitnbutian {I28TL651)
Het Assets Atributalls te Usithel der LD EEE

et Asret Value per Uni

PP Qaid P 4 967,564,339 + D97, 833 Linitd S0l aivd i) f o 8,30

L0 Clarss LISID 16,402 1A3 = L BO& 753 Lints sunsterding) 5D .03

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Iramiimant Incoma:
braeresy nat of withhobding teces of S0 7,677
tbeullanedun ratame

Teaml Irvamm anl irdoss

Expenasd:
Belanagemen fees
Datribuites’ ad ik
Custedian srdl sub-admmigrator's fees
Prof emonal fees
Agan compan s e
Truates lowi
Trander agent fees
Ausgistration faes
Other evperans

Total Evpantes

Het Invemts et Indeme

Realied gain{leries] and chargs in laad apgrwsl [ prucistion)
Aeshired goingfosses)
IRl e i AU
Fomaign curmari p trandadt ions. and Farward fons gn curmancy ecchargs dont it
Mot reaticed losses
Charge nunresi ord sppressticn Y doprecsstion)
Anstm &Nt 5 i seanTies
Foduige cur ey 1 e i oe ol Sprmand forwign (orrancy muchange contrts
Mo charge in usraslined depnecesticn
Mok realiped and change i weeslized Mooses wred deprecietion

Mt dacrascs in nat 3ssetr rapuking from cparations

UED L540, T2
174
1,540 533

267,047

ET.047

L5008

26,751

20,5437

1455

agay

EE
— . I

TEL 3=

(LETZLLS)
{54,477

{2026 583

{2931, 164)

1546432}
4477586

—_— ARATTSRA
(5. S04.L70)

usp [B.r o ma)

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Incrasss (Daoreare] in ek S vake from:

‘Oparationa:

Mgt irvesment moome

et resiiaed losees

Het chirvpe i unrealiced dopeeiation

et diraase inonet st i raiuBing Irom aperationd

Birtribution: to Unithalder:
¥t Qs
LD Das

Teewl Crerdtiong

Caphal Transseison:

briks ismped
Y Cluss [ 302893 Unars)
S0 Qs [ 337,501 Unite]

Linit g radgam ed
P Qs (LLATE Unitg)
LD aeps [ D0, 501 Uniicg)
et ircrmuan in A Eeset i reiudiing dnam capital Dranaections

Total Incrame in Net S sty
et Aprete

Bagnning of year
Ered of your

uio 1910
2,008,592}

(4,477,586
5 725, 268K

(90,821

574,207)
1.583.028)

12,443,339
3,500,848

[3094,BOEY
I, 368, 183

LE 0L 158
9,462 50T

A3, 074,066
LED SR 636060

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)

CathPlowa From operstng akities:
ek docreass in net aeets rerting from operstions (£ x] %725, 268)

Socfjuntm etz ba recoricle the net deereate in net strel reiulting frem eperstions e et carh uzed bn

‘aparafing adhitian;
Burchase of mvestments (25830687
Prosoids Inos sala wd msufily of FnipRmants 15,031,752
et smortipation and {scoration) of prameum jsnd| dimourd s on corperste delts bl gabiony arsd tho Tarm

ineEEmanis 5,972
Rl pied] fs s o | Yl g 2T 1672115
Onarge in urresliced deprecstion on invesm eris T ar) 164
Tharge 17 ureesliced depreostion an farwird lorsgn awren oy eachange conteacts 1,580,683

Changa In syets and Nablities related to operaticn:

Rt o TR SOy b (153,616
Bt riasd i o bl liatd 125,812}
Decroase m Eorued sustodien and sb-adminigrgor's feas {59,406}
Dwcrease i acorusd professonel {ees {2588}
Decremss n sconued trustee fees {L50ap
brcrease in B d repsraton fees 153

Bz i i mognuad /o an age e Pl 3,193

Ericrase in socned distributo e (e 1039

brcreass in mocrued agenk company'sFees k]

Ereraans i mecnaed othet Supanies 7,941

Het cadb wmed in opersing scthtien EHEE
CarhRows provided by Frmmndng scthitn:

Prooerds from Unis ieased 10, 247, M1

Pt 5 on Lnins iedwsred |&,59%6, LaTh
Dty b tigevd padd o Usitha idar [1.543,038)
et cadh provided by financing ndthities 11,778,606

Mt ingragie in carh and bl purraney 2 305 DET

Careh and forei gn cumency at begnersng of pear 244,107

Carhard famign curmency ot and of year usn 2 4

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

1P Clarr W50 Clags
Forthe YesrEnded For the Yesr Ended
Febrnaary 8, 3003 Febnaary 28, 23

Mt Acurt Value, brgreing of pew il H.253 LSD .87
hbe ine s M incom 6% 160 (]
Mot renleed snd oreesbced bopses [B11) [ELED
et decrmasn innet apset s resBting from operaions [E51] [0L43]
sy gribubiong [E20] ]
Mot Aot Vialue, dnd of year I B30F LED 5.08
Tonml Petuen {7050 14.21%
BatiogTupplen antal det s

Hed assebs e of year [000's] Fr 4,563,954 B0 L6802

Riatio of eeponies (0 Fredagh net oot L.BE% L.BE%

Ratio of ref investmant icome Lo avarage net saieti N 8 LOT%

= Calculated upng searige Units gufstending for the o,

The accompamying notes are an integral partof these Bnandal smbements
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOUIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
Principal % of Mat
i 7 i Des Hagety Fadr Walum
TG RGOS STCLIRITIES (B )
ALSTRALA 1)
CoieRATE BOMEY & MOTES (1%
Earshint Servioes ioldngs Py Lbd
EVR 7451000 LEN e a3l 1% S0 242D
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDY & NOTES T
TOTAL AUAT RALLS —I.]lza
BELGRMA (EA%)
CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES (247
Sobuay 5.4
(A1) L0000 L50% dun A1 LFEN 2 LidL%en
U 106, 088 4 T4 o 13,0 4/7080 [E) 104,608
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMIS & HOTEY TN
TOTAL BELGILEA I T T
EAMADA 1 0%)
CORBPORATE BOND & MOTES [L9%)
Enigrisgm, i
1] 1,809,000 5.50% due 0711 5/T7 3.2 16T 065
(1] 360,000 EA0% due 0157 [ 3 ANE
Roapert Commuerecalin, ind.
Ul 5,008 57 dum 331592 0.4 SRS
Tiririifind Trur
LSD LI, 00 SHEN due 081576 0.2 35 004
TOTAL EORPORATE BOMDY B MOT T YR
FOLAL CAMADA, 280,18
FRAMNCE [1.5%)
CORPORATE BOMDY & MOTES (71.5%)
Sqkema G,
(111] 500,009 L0 o 10217758 0e LT
(] L.300,008 27 eho 04, /1400 : L 100
Daciectsde Franee La
EUR AL, 0 3. ik chu 6,15/ 30 80 BE 4301
RF 00,000 SEE. due 11,22/158 02 MLHZ
e 2,500,008 0 chas (119 SR a4 3,506 064
Enpe S.A,
EVR &),007 L% due 0408/ 758 B L]
Qrangs R
U 00,008 1.74%, dhu 077157160 L HEE]
T e 5E
EUR 1,800,000 LETE due 1O/ 5270 L0 2,093,598
EUR 15,000 LT chue 0411 4/ 7280 oa FIEST]
R 100,008 2 T1% dum G305 THM &z 105006
‘il i [ Frvirgerimant LA
LR a0, 068 260, o 111 5/37680 L8 b FRTE]
EUR 0, 000 2SN due 31720/ 268 Ba ATTARE
EVR 7200000 250% due 3120/ 798 LE 2,431 368
TOTAL CREPORATE BOMDS & HOTES T TN
10T AL FRAME o lasTaTE
GEERUY (151 %)
CORPMUATE BOMDA & MOILS (15.1%)
Baper &G
EUR 1,300, 008 L3N due L1A 2T 14 1,064,320
EUR 181N, 008 .75 dus BT/01,7T4 EX] 1,000,508
FUR 1600000 S due 532992 £ ) PR LR 1
Bt o e 4 & o 0Gas
EuR 100, S 150 s 04/2 TS [T ATEEE
En@'w Enangi e Bader Wusritem berg &5
EUR 3.900,000 L% due L1057 37 1,263,036
a1l 1,300,000 L% due 28/91,/91 E3] LMLIS
TOTAL CORPORATE SOMDS B MOTES 7800 461
TOTAL GiRRbARY ¥ k1

The accompamying notes are an integral partof these Bnandal smbements.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOUO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)

February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
Principal % of Met
Aot & Diax _ Areaty Falir Valum
PR | O SECLIRITIES 8.0} oantinued)
ALY LD
CORPMUATE BOMNDN B BOIEY (100
[T
e BOR000  1o0% dued2ALTE LF) 50 [LR O]
Toor - fogte Eleminics ozl
EUR SDR008 3 BEN due 11,0878 Y] 241401
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMIS 5 MOTLY S0 ATe
TOTAL 1AV FIATE
RAPMERAR ARG 0. 305
CORPORATE BONDS B MOTES W%
Holioim Fingnos Lunereboung 5.4
EUR 131,009 L0 thue DM 5 A8 23 134,137
FOTAL CORPORATE SOMD S £ MOTES [TV
TOTAL LUSEMBOURG 134,337
T VS RLANIS (8,575
CORPORATE BONDY & MOTTY 255
ELAY B For Firmanch inbrnabonal 5.4,
(] aTT000 1T dhor 09N 2,/ 758 .7 LT
| e il DT el B
EUR 100,000 LIT% due 0128158 Bl BE496
Korani i e FriesianaCampina MY
EUR GH6,000 2SN due 05100158 L2 666,147
Saeedn Hoidirg 1
R 100,000 LSO% dur 120N ' ¥] 29,600
T bl g B
R EOB000 LI due 00458 L¥] 24,0587
Wil gl Inbernetiena Firance B/
EUR S00000 AT due L2AETR LY ] BE0.689
EUR LRORODD AN due 064/ TE ¥ ] ReENTH
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMD S & MOTES 5 LB
TOTAL NCTHERLAMDS 5 mLn
PORTLNEAL §.1%)
CORPMATE BONDS & MOTES 0.1%)
0P - Enengiad e Portugs! fa.
(] 100,008 18U chas 3314083 1] T, Ta3
TOTAL CORPIUATE BOMDS & MOTES e
TOTAL POKTUIGAL Az
PAIN [0.4%)
CORPORATT BOMDS & MOTEL 045
P Etamrea Cong 4.
EUR TON00E SIS dus oS0 eR X 108,537
TOTAL CORPIBATE BOMD S & MOTIL 00,5Ed
TOTAL 598N 0y
SWEDEM (1.1%)
CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES [1.1%)
atbendad 48
-1 R0 2.5% ce 05193 L] IILTIE
‘iten Tremdury A
[T ] 100,008 A8 due 3810/ TH 0.2 104,914
TOTAL CORPIRATE SOM S & NOTES T AL
FOTAL SYWEDER ST AR
WIPT E KIHGODOR (2 F5)
CORPRATE BOMNDS & POTES [71.7%)
BF Capitel Markes PLC
EUR AE,000 3755 due 33,2 2/ 2660 o7 WTEE53
EUR LI%.000 A6 due 02,22 798 (Y] 108437
Britith Telecommum cationt LG
usD SIT000  AISN.dueilA0m) L WD
PAG Finanos PLE
EUR LEDTODD 205 due 05,0597 13 S TIH
eF LATROEY AN dumOeARTR X1 LT

The accompamying notes are an integral part of these finandal staternents.
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February 28, 2023
(Expressed In United States Dollar)
Prinoigal % of Mat
[ ¥ A t  Seeusity Deseription Agieti Faiir Vinlus
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The accompamying notes are an integral part of these finandal staternents.

83/202



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 28, 2023

{Expressed In United States Deollar)
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The accompamying notes are an integral part of these finandal staternents.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

MELE Corporate Hybrid Seouriges Fund (the “Series Trust™) Is a series trust of the Midge AW Offshore Funds, an open-
ended unit rust sitshlishad by & supplementsl rust deed dated Decernber 16, 2006 [the "Supplamantd Trust Deed®),
under the lows of the Cayrman idands, hNidio AM Offshore Fundswas established by a master trust deed dated October 18,
2012 the “Master Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Coyman ldands and is licensed with the Cayrman Hands Monetay
BMutharity pursuant 1o section (1)) of tve Mol Funds Act (2021 Revision), The Series Trust commencad operations on
February 22, 2047,

The Series Trust's asters are managed on @ day-wo-day badls by Niko AM Globd Cayrman Umited (the “Manager'), The
Manager defegates imvesiment managemant duges 1o Mideo Asset Management Co, Lid, (the “vesment Manager].
Tha Invesrment hManager delagates impestment management duties 1o Neubenger Berman Imvestment Adesers LLG, [the
“sub-lrvestment Manager™], The administration of the Series Trust is delegaved (o Brown Brothers Harman & Co, [the
“CustedBan” amd = Sub-Administrator”), & limived partnership organiped under the laws of the Seate of New York,

Tha imsestment objective of the Series Trust i3 to adeieve a rad tolong teern total return thrcugh incorrss and capital
sppreciation, The Seres Trust shall malnly invest in both irvestmentgrad e and non-iresrment grade hybrid securtes that
ore isdued by non-finencial corporate isuers and have been rated by aither of Maady's, SBP o Fitch, The highest rating
from all thres of these agancies. shall be applied o sach corpornte ybrid security and the average racng of the portfciio
shal be BEE-/Baal o sbove.

Cowparate hybrid debr sscurities ore stroctured instramen s that combine both squity and Raed incorre charse terfatics that
generaly offer a means for issuers to borow money from Investors in return for interest payments. Such corporate imuers
ey Ltitiee hybinid debt for & variety of regsons, including baltering their capital levels, lowering their waghted merage
ooet of capital, diversifiing their funding scurces and managing credit ratings. Though termes and conditions hanve become
incrassingly standandized, the spedific characteristics of aach instrument [such as payrent conditions, the ratio of debe and
equity-ile features, trme fremes and applicable ratesh con vany.

The Series Trust miay also imvest in fxed and floating rete debt securitles, induding bonds, fsseed by govemments and
governmant rel ated antities.

Derivative Instruments will be usad for afficiant por dioiio mansgermeant mrdfor impeshment purposes, sswell as for he=dging.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, RrstCanibbean infermational Bank and Trust
Compary [Cayrman] Urndted [the “Trustes” and the “Aderdini strator™) 15 named as Trustee of the Seres Trust,

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Securltes Co., Lbd 1o act as Agent Company (the “Agent Company™)
o the Manager appointed Mitiubishi UF) Morgan Stardey Securities o, Lid 1o sct as Distributer [the "Distributes”) of
Lnfts in Japan o such otiher person o instdintion as may be appointed as distributer of Sue Series Truss by the Manager
freon girme b time,

MM ARY CF HGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES

The Series Trust s an imvestrent company that follows the asccountig and reporting guidence in FASE Accounting
Standards Codi ficat on S48,

Lae of Extimotes
Tha accompaming financial statements have been prepared in accordance vwith accounting principlesgenerally accepted in
the United States of America (“ULS GAAF"). The preparation of fnondal statements in accordance with LS. GAAF requires
the Serles Trust's management 1o make estimates and sssumptions that affect the reported amounts of asgets and
Eablities and disdosures of contingent assets and Habilites at the date of the financld statements and the reported
armgunts of revenues and sspenses during the repordng period, Actual resdts, Induding the Widmate amcunt realized
upon the sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be sgnificant.

Bomis of Accounting

feaurity and contractual ransactions are reconded on & adefconract-date bads, nterest income s reconded on an
eflsctive yield basis, net of sy applicable withhalding tax, interest axpense ind cther axpendes sra recorded on an accrusl
bass Realized gairs and | osses from security ransactions are computed on the bass of the average cost of the secuities
wid o covered, Charges in tha vauaton of imestmants are recorded in the Statement of Operationt b untealizad
apreciaton or depredaton,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [sentinusd)

Valuation of fnvestmen s

Bonds and other debt seamities, incloding restricted sacurities [other than short-term obligations but including listed
Femsues) are fair valued st thair lese sale prics in the principal marcket in wiich seth ssturities are normally raded, on the
bass of valuations furnished by a pricing senvice, wse of which has been approved by the Insestment Manager, o if no sale
g occurred, the bid price on the viuation date as provided by brokers whao are market makers in the securitas A debt
secur et with bess than 12 manths to maturity date, in principle shall be far valued using an amortized cost sffacted by an
affective yield sccurmulated famortization method 1o their maturity date with adjustments bassd on comparison with
mmarket prices a5 required:

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value messsrements and disclosres under LS SAAP, the Serfes
Trust disdeses the far value of its imeestments in 8 hierarchy that pricritizes the inputs 1o valuation techrigues used to
mieaLre the fair vafue, The hierandwy gives the highest pricdty to waluations based upon unadjusted guoted pricesin active
markets for identicdl assets o llabilities (Level 1 memurement] and the lowest pricdty to valustions based upon
unobservable inputs that ang sgnificant to the valuation [Lewel 3 mesmrements). The guidance esmblishes three levels of
the Tair viaslue bierarchy o follows:

= Level 1 = irputs that reflect unadjusted gqucted prives in active markess lor [dantical lrvestments that the Serfes
Trust has the abllity to @ocess at the meamrement dabe;

®  Level 3 = Inputs other than quoted prices that are: significant and chservable for the asset or lability either
diractly or indirectly, induding inputs in markets that are not conaldensd oo be acthve;

= Level 3 - Inputs that are ggnifi cant and uncbisensable,

Irputs are used in apphyeing the various valuation echaigues and broadly reler te the ssumgtions that marker participants
e b mskos valuation deddons, induding assumptions sbaut g Inputs many include price information, pacific snd broad
eracht deta, Niguldity statfatics, and ather facters, A Bnancial instrument’s bevel within the Tair value herarchy fs based wan
the lowest bevel of any input that is Sgnificant to the fair value meaarement. However, the determingtion of what
cortntes Tobaarvable” reguires sgnificant judgment by the Invesement Manager. The imarioment Manager comsiders
obsenvable dats to be markst data which is readily svailable, regulady distributed or updated, relisble and verifisble, not
proprieeey, md provided by independent scurces that are actvely invalved in the rdavant market, The categcrization of a
fimancial insbrurrsnt within the herarchy s based upon the pricng tramparency of the instrument and does not necessarly
oo o the vedtment Manager’s parosived Aol thist instrument.

Irvestments whose values are based on the quated market prices in active markets;, and therefore cassifad within Level 1,
wodd indude activaly traded equities, certain LS government and soweraign chiigations, and certain money markost
securitios, The insestrent Marager would not adiust the guoted price for such instruments, seen in 8 tuations whers the
Series Trust held alage position and a sde could reascnably impact, the quoted price.

Imvestments that brade in markets that are not consdered bt be active, but are walued based on guoted market prices,
dealer quotations o altermative pricing sources supported by chservable iInputs are dlassified within Level 2, Thase include
Emvestmen tgrade debt seourities short-term Imvestments and forward Foreign curmency exchange contracts. As Level 3
Empestren s include positions that ane not raded in active mareets and/or are subect o rardfer restictons, valuations
miay be adjested to reflect Iifqul dity andor non-transferabliity, which are generalfy based on avallable market information.
Irvestrmants dassfied within Level 3 huve sgnilicant unobservaiile inputs, &5 they would trade infrequantly, Levsl 3
Instruments would indude sssetbadkad securities and collateralized morgage cbligations. As chservable prices are not
mvalihle for those sacurities, the Saries Trust would use val wation techni ques o derive e far value,

Tha inpauts ar methedalogy used for valuing securities sre nat recasssarly o indication of the ridk smedsted with invesing
i those sacurites,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Vealvotion of Invertmen iz {contin wed)

The following table présents the finandal instruments carried on the Statemant of Assets and Liabilites by caption and by
level within the velustion hierarchy & of February 28, 1023, Futher damificadons of the finencd insruments ore
presanted in the Portfolic of Imvestments.

Ssrrats ot Fair Valus Fair ol ot
Lavel Lol 2 el February 3, 2023
Fiuad breom & Setuties us0 - LD 48,950,845 [T - [T A5 FERES
Forwsrd Foregn Cumancy
Eschange Contracts - 207,938 - 070
Touad LD - L50 49158 a1 [T] - L0 43 158 AN
Lishiieier 31 Fak Valoe Fai Wilus ot
Laval 1 Lavel2 Lavel 3 Fobruary 28, 2023
Farward Foregn Curenicy
Exchunge Contracis {1.31] - LISE L 966 389 [E:s] - LD LJ6R 8
Teaal LD - [ 1. 266,359 D - i) 1,765 359

Curing the yeor ended February 28, 1023, there were no ransfers. in or out of Level 1 The Series Trust's policy is to
detenming levaling and assess all ransfers asata yoar end date,

Foreign Currensy Translotion

Assats and lfabilides hald in orrendes other than United States Dollar (*LA0° or the “Functional Cumency®™] are transiated
b e Functional Currency at the rase of exchange prevadling at e financial satement date. Income and expentses are
transated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on which the income or expense is inpurred. Realized and
urreaiped gains and lodees adsing on forsgn currency transsctions. are induded in the Satement of Operations in the
period in which they oocur.

Tha Serles Trust does not Isclate that portfon of the results of cperationsresuting from changes In forelgn exchange rates
on jrestments from the Tluctuatiors arfsing from changes in markst peices of seeurtes held, Such Rucuations are
Encluded with the met reaized and uresalized gain or loss from invesiments.

Income Taxes

Linder tha current laws of the Cayman ilands, there are no incomes, withioldirg, capiol gains or orher taass payalble by
the Series Trust bn certain jurisdictions other than the Coyman Bands, forsign ees may be withheld at source on
divddends and inperest recaived by the Serfes Trest, Capstal Zairs derived by the Senes Trust in sudh jurisdictions genarally
will b exampt from foreigninoome of withholding tames ot source. The Sefes Trust intends to condudt its affairs such that
fowdl ot be subgect to inoorme e B0 ey prisdiction, As 8 result, ne provision for intome taes has been made in the
finarcial Satemants, Unitholder may ba tacad on thair propartionata dhare of the Sanas Trest's Cax basis inoome based on
their Frdivd dusl cincurnstenses,

The Series Trust follows the suthoritaive guidamnce on acoounting for and discloaurs of uncerinty in thx poditions
{Fmancia Accdunting Standards Board {*FASE") - Accounting Standards Codfication T40], whidh requires the Manager to
detarmine whether & tax position of the Series Trust is more Ieely than not to be sustiined wpon sxarmination by the
applicable tawng authority, induding resclution of anvy related appeals or litigation procerises, based on the edhnical
marits of he postion, For e potitions mesting the more Baly than rot threshald, the tax banalfit reccgrped in the
financial taterments is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likefihood of being realized upon
ultimate ssfament with the relevant taxing authority, The Manager has detenmined that there is mnimal o ro effsc on
the financial stateaments baing undear this author b guidsncs.

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchan ge €

Tha Serles Toust may enter into forward forsign cumency edchange conracts to hedge againgt foreign camency exchange
rate riskes on all or & portion of non-LED denominaked investments or for efficient portfolio management purposes. When
artering Into a fonward foreign osrency exchange coniract, the Serfes Trust agrees 1o recaive of deliver a Rred quantiny of
foreign currency for an agreed-upcn price onan agreed future date. These contracts are vadued dally, and the Series Trust's
et aquity thereln, representing unrealized appraciaticnfidepreciation]) on the conracts a6 measured by the difference
bebaeen the forward foreign ourrency exchange rates at the dates of entry Into the contracts and the fonward rates at the
reporting date, isincluded in the Staterrent of Assets and Uabilides, Realized and unrealized gains and losses are Included
in the Statemment of Oparations
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Ferward Foreign Currency Exchan ge Controcts [con towed)]

Thass instruments imsolve marcet sk, cadit dsk, o both kinds of fisks, in excem of the smount recognized in the
Seaterment of Assets and Lsbilities Rigks arfse fom the possible inability of counterparties 1o rmser the e of their
oontracks and from movenent in currency and secarities walues and interest rates. in addition to the Qo lewel hedging,
the Saries Truse had nat realized gains of UBD 3,073,240 on 63 forward foreign currency exchange contracts duning the year
with an average nofonal of USD 5 217,006 and an average term B0 maturity of 73 days. The Sevies Trust also had net
realived lomes of USD 3,897,065 on 31 forwerd foreign curmency exchangs contracts hald ot the Oless IPY Hadged level
during the year with an aversge nofional of USD FA7T0599 and an average torm to moturity of T8 days The average
nafand of the foreard foregn currency exdyange contracts hald for class level hadging throughout the yese is broady
corsstent with the NAY of the IPY dass at aach point In Hrre,

The msats of the Serfas Trust masy be held in cne or more correndes, and the Series Trust will, In principle, sgage in
merﬁhmm e currency of dendrmination of sach Oass (LS Dollar for US0 Oass and lapaness Yen for IPY
Qmss] and the curmency of the imessments in the underlying portfclio, provided, however, et such hedging for JPY Qe
miy b parfarmed through tha UGS Dollar,

Cazh ond Foreign Currency
Carsh and for eign curmency comprises all arrency held with the Custodian, and overnight and cther short term placements
with other ndncial insiufons.

UNITE

Tha nest Besets of dhe Series Trust are dividad (mao BPY Oass Unics and LED Oass Units, The Units are dencminatad in
lapanese Yen and United States Dollar. IPY Qass: Units and LGD Oass Uniks are svallable to a0 digibl e Sovestor who is avy
parson, corporation o entity which isnot (i) & dien o resident of the LL5, a partnership organized or exdsting in the LS,
o @y corporation, trust or cther antity crgani ted Lnder the bawes of or edsting in the LS (i) & person o entity reddent or
dariciled in the Cayman tdands (exduding any chiject of 8 chafuabla trust or pows or 8 exeampted of non-resident
Cayrran Idands company]; (i) unable to aubacribe for or hald Units without vislating applicable baws, or [iv) a custadian,
narmines, of rustes fae iy parson, corporation o sty dewedbead in ] to (i) above, Bath tha JPY and LED dassees share
proporfonately in the gairs and losses of the Seres Trust level investments. In addition, the IPY dass receives gains and
usses frorn the P forwards held 8t the IPY Qs level for hadging purposes, Refer to Mote 1 for further detalls on the
Sarles Teust's currency hadging srategy.

The Manager may debermine 1o isue one or more dasses of Units of the Series Trust without prior notice to or writben
corment of the Unitholder,

Al of the net assets atiributable to JPY Oass Units and LSD Class Undis are held by one nominee account Linfthoider,

IPY Claas LSO Clasy Tl Series Trust

Balance ot Pebeusry 2, 102 ush  MLBTASD UsD  MLSSA 2R UtD  A337L08E
Susbir it in s diming the yea 18,443,333 3,500,848 T 964 18T
Ridemptiong doring tha yaar (2894, 606) (2365, 083) (5. 362,963)
Destribubiora (958,821) (874,207 (1.513.028)
et docrease in net assets resulting from oparations ;l.ﬁsz I'ES] [I!?lﬁ] !5!’152’6&!
Biet Avmets ot Febeunry B8, 2003 USD  BAIATAS U0 2R 400108 uUSD  S1LAMGOER
Borr bt el U A3 e (e o Fabeuney 39, 2002 333814 LETTEER 201L4TT
Lbevtg e during the ypesr U R ] 387.501 GG, T
Uit s redaom ed during the yesr gl 74 iﬁ;ﬂl-l_&l.] [ 35, 275Y
Homber of Un @ (erue of Februssy I8, 2003 507033 LADLTER LA0Z 596
Bhet Aot Vishuoe per Linit ot February 28, 2023 usn BB LD a0

Suhsoriptions for Units

LED Oarss Units were first issued at an inita iswees price of U0 10,00 per Unit JPY Class Units wera first issusd ot an initial
issue price of B 10,000 per Unit. On and after initidl dosding day, the minimum inftal subscription for USD Jass Linits per
sty iber i3 10 Units or mars, and in multiples of 1 Unit thersafter, The ririmum initial subscription for IPY Ot Unis
per subscriber is 1 Unitor more, and In multiptes of 1 Units thereafer.

Tha Manager may walwe or change the minimem intal and sdditional subscription amounts sat forth sbaows Inits sole
distration from Sme b e
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

UNITS |continu ad)

Foles Charge
In addion to the subscrption price, the applcant shall pay a safes charge caladlabed ot up to 3% (eluding any Tax
moplicatile] of the purchase price, 1o the Dissibuter,

Uinit Redemptons

The Series Trust recognizes radempbions in acoordancs with the avthoritabive guidance on distinguishing llabdities from
equity, Redemptions, whather expressed s United States Doller, lapansse Yen or Units, sra recognized as liabilities when
each of the Linited Stotes Oollar, Japsmese Yen and Unitamounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fxed, which
gerecdly miy octur wther & the Sme of the recsipt of the notics, o on the et day of & fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the reguest. fs a result, redemptions pad after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflacted a8 rademptions payable at February 28, 2023, Thare weare USD 57,887 of redemplions payable as at February 18
2023, Includad ot Payable for Units radesmead in the Statermant of Amats and Uabilitex

Regurchese of Unitr

Each Unithalder may request 3 repurchase of Units by the Saries Trust unbess repurchases have been suspandad by tha
Manager, Uritswill be repurchased daly st the M Asser Value per Linit 88 at the ralevant Repurchass Day (sach business
iy, comrrandng on Feboway 22, 2017, or mich other day o days &5 the Manager may from time o tme determine in respect
of the Series Trus dlss b ("Valuation Dey™]), Thane will bens repur chase charns on repurchases of Urits held over fiae years,

Compudrory Redemption

I the event that the Trusbes or the hManager chall determine that any Units of any dass of & Serdes Trust ara baing held by
or for tha benafit of & person who i3 not o Bligible mmestor Tor such Series Trust or that such holding waould cause the
Trust or the Series Trust to be required to register, be subject o tan or wiclate e laws of any jurisdiction,, or if the Trustes
o tha Manager has resson to doubt the legitimacy of the source of monies used to fund e wbseription or purchass of
such Linits, o for whatever reason fwhich may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Manoger i Unitholder) that the
Trustes o the Manager comiders sppropriate at its absclute discredon having ragerd to tha interssts of the Uritholdar of
the relevant Class or the Unfthofder of the Series Trust o5 awhole, then the Manager, after consul ation with the Trustes,
oy direct the holder thereof to sl such Unis within 10 days and prodide to the Trustes and the Manag o svderce of
sich mle, failing which the Manager may redeern such Uinlts,

Teminrtion of the feries Trust

Lpen tereminacion, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Series Trust, and after ping cut or retalning adeguaie
prosision for 2l Habliltes properly payable and retalining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee dhall
distribate the procesdsof that realization to the Unitholder proportionately to their respective intenests in the Series Trus
as of the date of termination of the Series Trust,

Distributions to Linith older

Tha Manager may, in it sole discration, decare disributions and no guarantas (5 made that these will ke place,
Distributicns will be dedared on asch Distribution Recoed Date and caloulated on aach Ex-Distribufon Dare Distribution
Pariod is @ pericd cormemencing. from the talender day following the preceding Distributfon Recond Date and ending on and
including the Distribution Record Date, The distribution swill be paid on the rélevant Distribution Payrent Date, provided
that such amount Bl anyl declared with respect o the relevant Oass of Units in respect of the spplicable Disribution
Period shall ondy be pad cut of the Series Trust's net income, redized and unrealized capital gains and any distributable
fursds of the Saries Trust attributable to such Jessof Units &8 detanmined by the Manager,

The dedaration of distributions to Unithol der reduces the Class Level Net Asset Values per Uinibwithout any comesponding
charge in the number of Class Lewed Uinits per Uinitholdar, This results in a Unithalder's owerdl investment in the Series
Trust being reduced. in addition, any distributions during ayear whicth are In exciss of the Series Trusts netincrease in net
asetsreallSng from operations results in a portion of the distribution bairg return of capital.

The amount of distributions, if amy, will be deterrined by the Mandger in its sole disoretion, and no represatation or
guarantes i3 made that a ditrbution wil be mada in respact of each or any Distribution Period,

Capitalization

Thar Met Asset Value par Unit s caloulated for each Dealing Dary (sach Valuaton Day, o suth cther day or days as the
Manager may from tme bo Sme determine In respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference In value between the
Saries Trust's assers and llablides (induding accrued fees and expenses of the Serles Trusth by the number of Units
cutstanding.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

UNITS |continu ad)

Capltalizmtion {contin ued)
The Trust Deed stipulates that the mumbar of Units to be ismeed in the Series Trust shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
dherermine arvd shall be without par valus,

DERNATIVE FINANCIAL IMSTRUMENTS

Acoounting Standard Codification (ASD) 81 5-10-50 requines disclosures about darivative instruments and hadging activities
It rogquires that the Serles Trust discose: a) how end why a0 entity uses derivatve instruments, b} how derivative
instruments and rdated hadged items are scocamted for ad of how dervative instruments and related hedged iems
alfect am entley’s Enancial posidon, financial performance and cash flows.

The Series Trust trenscts forwerd derlvative Insgruments primarity for hedging punposes with each instrument®s primrany
itk expofre bang foreign exthange rige. Tha forward lorsign currency axdhangs contracts hald by the Sarias Trust do not
qualify a5 hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 518, The far vaue of these derivative
instruments s induded in the Staterment of Assets ond Uabilities with changes in far valve refected o resfized
gaingf{losses) or net change in unrealized appredationfdepreciaiion) on derhvatives within the Statement of Operations
{Mcste 2).

The Serie: Trust may enter into an intemational Sevaps and Derivative Ascociation,, Inc, Masber Agreament {1504 Master
Agreemant®) with Its counterparties in order to mitgate counterparty rige The 1504 Master Agresment Is typically
negotinted by the Series Trust and its counterparties, containing the bidfateral terms and cond®tions for al subsequent
derivative tramsactions The B0A Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed o or dee from
counterparty into a Sngle net poymient if a credit event or default showld oocur.

The S=ies Trust has dected to not offset far value recehables and payables for deriwative contracts on the face of the
Sratemnant of Assets and Liabilidies,

At Februsey 18, 2023 the Serfes Trust had entered into the following derlvative assets by counterparty net of amounts
avalgble for offest under a Master Netting Agresment | “&Aha") and net of any collateral received by the Seni e Trust:

Dimrhvative Agsats Gt N th Cath ok Ampsant of
Counterpasty ﬁgﬂtﬂllm Bvwnilnbie for Offset Colfatersl Recehvad Collstersl Recabvad Derbvative & sets”
Goldman facha (7] 24,147 5D [FIETFITw] —LE0 —LEO =
Reysl Bonk of el 25,000 |25, 000) - - -
State Striwt Bank And Trug Co. 105, 0 {506,083) - - -
Westpar Banking Comporaton S:I,i@i- 15].&;%] - - -
Towsd US) 7836 WSO uso -0 — U -

it February 28, 2023 the Sardes Trust had entered into the Tl owing, derivative abilities by counterparty net of amounts
ovailable for of fsat under & MINA and net of amy collatensl pledgad by the Series Trust

Dertativg Mt Amont of

Lilnbvifinie o Diervani L] h Cuiby Derkatie
[ ity Sadjact ta o MBS Avsilsbls for Offiet Collstarsl Pladped Collstersl Madged  Lisblltiss®
=odm s Saeha 50 35708 LE0D {24, 343 0D =LED =150 L0539
Bl Bank of Canla T30 {36,000 = = 847,210
State Street Bank And Trus Co. 121,997 | B0 ) = - as.07a
Wieitpet Bankong Conpor shion 166,008 {51, 6] = - 114,305
Teasl um [TT] 07 936 LS - usSD -USD 1058453

1 R TR L S Tl P A PIERN R Iy Fr O T CouSDETpEay I The Bvent of defimilL

At February 28, 2023 the Saries Trust had snterad into the following derivativas:

FAust Darfvative: Linhility D rivathven
(Dbl el Brutem et SEptEman
Mat Sccounted For ar of B dety sl ef Bidats and
fny-tram sk Liabilkias Losation Fair Valus Lishlitie: Locstion Falr valm
Farwsrd Bargigr currpngy  Llnndiliphd spprediicn Lirrnalized dapr wastion
wchange tontracts onforeand foneign onforward foreign
{Curngncy Bk turrircy dnchanpe LED 1936 currency wnchange L0 o L 266.389)
cortracks corkrais
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

DERFVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [ ontinaad)

The affect of derivative instruments on the Satementol Operations for the year ended February 28, 2022:
Change in Unreslized

Loz ation of ‘Raalized appmchtionor
Dbt Mot Aceounted  Guinor (Loss) Guin o (Loas) |Deprecstion) an
for s Hedging Indtruments o0 Derrvartiies on Darbrathed Derbathei

Nt reslized losses on Forwardinmgns
Forward fareign curminty gy @nchangs contr g
wrchange contracts change n urrgel jed déprecistion
Eu'mw.ﬁﬁt] Elwuﬂhwmvﬂmmzmum L1 ] [4Z3B15) LSD 1:.5&],5!”

The Misnagar recaives, out of the awets of tha Series Trust, & mansg emeant fae of & total of 0UE5% par srnorm (0,209 per
anmurm inrespect of fee for the Manager and the vesement Manager and O, 5596 per snnum in respect of Fee for the Suly-
Imeestrment Manager) of the et Asset Valee accrued on, and caoulated as at, each Wauation Doy and payabtde maonthly in
arears. In addition, the Manager also reimiburees, out of the assets of the Series Trust, for amy expenses ingermed by It in
the proper perfarmance of its powers and duties & permitted under the Mmter Trust Deed. During the year ended
Februany 28, 2033, the Manager eamned fees of USD 387047 of which LED 31,830 s il cucstanging as of February I8,
FlirEN

Tha Manager pans the fees of the Investment Manager cut of its Fees. The nvestiment Manager is responsible for paying
the fees of the Sub-Irvestrnent Manager and amy of the Imeegment Manager's delegates or other parties appointed by the
IPwastrrant Manager 1o perform it Bnctions in respect of the Saries Trust

CUSTOOIAN AND SUB-ADMI NI STRATCR'S FEES

Tha Custedian and Sub-Administrater receives a custody lee calculabed and pad monthly based on total assets and
transaction wolume.,

The Custodian and Sub-fudministirator receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, an administration fes [ndoding
tranafer agent foe) calodated bated on the Nat Asset Viahue &5 ot each Vduaton Day at the following anred rate:

- QLiEFaup to [and including] LISD 2 50 million;

- QLT ¥aup b fand including] LISD 500 million;

» DLOEG e LISES SO0 melion.

In addition to the above NAV based fer, theve [s a ranmctional based fee charged, which varles depending on the wolume
of transactions.

Swch drniniseracion fwe is payable monthly in areacs, and subjsct o e minimum annunl fee of LS0 30,000, In additon,
the Custexdion and Sub-Adrminigrater oleo fecsives customary safekesping fess and ramaction dwrges Al out-of pocket
axpariped of the Custodian and Sub-Admintstranor are bome by the Seres Trust, During the e ended February 28, 2023,
the Custoedion samead r&;ﬂtﬁajiﬁ,ﬂlﬁofﬁdﬂ LD 2,385 s sl cumstanding @ of February 2B, 2023,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trusteas recaves, out of the amsats of the Series Trust, & combined fee at the rate of (LD15% per annum of the Met
Awset Value acoved on, ond dodated as at, each Vauation Doy and poyable semi-annuadly in amears, subject to a
minimum annocd fae of LE0 15,000, During the yas sndad Fabrusy 28, 2023, the Trudtes aamad faesof USD 14,599, and
there weas an amountof USE 20,104 still cutstanding as of February 28, 2023,

AGENT COMPANY 5 FEES
The Agent Company recaves, out of the apsrts of the Serles Trust, a fee at the rate of 0,05% per annem of the Net At
Vaue acorued on, and coliudated as ol each Valuation Doy end payable guarterly in armears, Duning the year ended

February 28, 2023, the Agent Comnpany samed fees of LED 20,543, of which L5011, 454 is sl cutstanding as of February
28, 2023,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

CHETRIBUTOR'S FEES

Tha Distribitor recaives, out of the assers of the Series Trust, o fee arthe rate of 0.65% per annum of the Net Aseet Value
accrued on, and calcudaned a5 o, each Valuation Day and payable guarterly in arrears. Curing the year ended February 28,
2023, the Distributor sarmed fees of USD 267,047, of which LISD 43,659 is still outstanding as of February 28, 2023,

CITHER FEES AND EXPENIES

Tha costs and expenses In connection with the establishment of the Serles Trust and the offering of ®e Units, together
with the establishment of the Tnust, induding the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospecius or
axyl anatery brochor et raquirad, sre estimated 1S Ameunt b approxirately USD 1800000 Such costs and expanses will be
amortised within the first five (3] financal yeors of the Series Trust unless the Trustes decides that some ofher method
shal be spplied. The Administrator receives LED 1,500 per annum for FATCA f CRS complisnce sendoes,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Thar Series Trust's activisies eapocse [T to a varfery of Rnancial riskst marker risk (induding price risk, Interest rate risk, and
curranoy riskl, cradit ik and Bouidity rigk,

Ifarket Rizk
Al invemrrenss present b risk of loss of capital, The invesment Manager rncdarates thitnise trough a careful mlecdon of
securitions arvd sther fraeid instrumaents,

The Safes Trusts invesbment managermnent process is described in Mote 1. The primary determinsnt of the Sedes Trust's
ability to meet ts objective of mid to fong term capital appreciostion while eaming income is dependent on the
perlormance of Bhe investmant in the Underlying Fund.

Thear Seeri o5 Toust's [ewesrnant managerrent process (s desaibed in Note 1, The Serfes Trust's overall market positions are
monitored on a dally basls by the Sefes Trust's investment Monager.

The value of the Series Trust's investrments is affectsd by & nuenber of factors, including but net limited to, charges in the
wider sconodrry, finandal ansd currency markets, Toreign currency sschange rades, interest rate movements and cradi
ratigsof debrisuers

The Series Trust may anter into forwerd forsign currency emchange contracts whith 1o warying degrees represent & market
ik i azcess of the ameunt refacied on the Series Trusr's Statement of Assers and Lisbilices The notional ameuntof the
contract represents the sxtent of the Sades Trust's partidpation in thess finencid instruments Market risks msociated
with such contracts arise dus to the possible movementsin foregn each ange rates underying thess imtrumens,

Oither rracket and cradit rsksindude the pessibaSity that thase ray bae an illigeid market for tha contracts, that the dhange
in the value of the contract may not directly corrdate with changes in the walue of the underlying cumendies o that the
counterparty 1o 8 forwerd contract defades on s cbligation to perform undar the terms of the contract, The Series Trust's
axposune ko boss due to cointerparty nonperfomanca on open forwards foraign curmency axchange contractsis limited o
the unresiized sppreciaton inherent in such frand sl instruments whith are recognized in the Staternent of Assets and
LiabliGes.

Imterest Rote ik

The Sari o5 Trust"s eapomure to changes ininterest rates refates primarly o the Series Trust's invegmaents in debe securites
oontracts Inberest rate fluctustions may also affect the fair value and pricing of derivative insruments purchased or sold
short by the Series Trust, The Investrment Manager continucusly mondtors the Senies Trust's ssposure 1o Interest rate risk
and the Series Trust's owerall Interest sengigwity on a regular bass.

Cradie Rigk

redit risk represants the potential loss that the Seres Trust veould incur if the counterparties or istuers of debt ssarifes
fasled wo performn pursuant 1o the terrmd of their cbigations to the Series Trust For exchange-raded contracts, the
exhange acts & the conterparty o specific ramsactions and, therefors, bears the rige of delivery to and from
counterparties of spedfic positions The Series Trust's maragement dods nat consder that credit risk related to open
derivative contracts will have material adverse effect on the Snandal condiion of the Seres Trust.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [¢ontinued)

Credit Rizk [continusd)

While both the LS. Bardewip toy Code and the Securities iImsesbor ﬁm:ﬁmktd!ﬂ?ﬁmklnmumnw
b the: event of a fallure, insolvency or ligul dation of an institution, there [ no certainty that, in the event of & fallure of an
Enstitution that has oustody of Series Trust assets, the Serdes Trust would not inour [osses due bo its assets being unavalable
for & period of tme, ulgmately less than Bl recovery of i assets, or both, Because all of the Series Trust's cash Is In
ustody with & single institution, such | omes could be Sgrificant and could matevially impair the ability of the Seras Trust
bt achieve lts imeestment cbjective, The Serfes Trust Is subject to credit e to the extent that this Instutlon may be
unable bo ful il its cbiigations to repay amounts owed.

Liguioity Risk
Irrgstors should be sware that the vadue of Uindes mighs Tall as well as rise. Imvestmant in the Serfes Trust involves a degres
of risk, thare can be no sssurence thet the Series Trust's investrment objectve will be achisved,

Tha Serias Trust is expoted to daly repurchase of ity Lnits but managemen? balisves that the Saries Trus has ailfident
resuaces o meat the presant and foressaable neads of its business operations and, if necesary, the liquidity to fund
repurchases and achiswe & mirket posiden sopropristely reflecting & smaler copitdl base. This positon i3 manitred
oontiruely by manegemssnt to ensure that the Series Trust has the ability bo mest its obligations.

At February 28, 2023, substantially ol the impestrments of the Sedes Trust were raded in the over-the-counter markes

Currency Risk

The Series Trust holds imvestmen'ts denominated in USD, whidh is the Series Trust's funciona and presentational cumency.
Howapver, the Series Trust expects to hedge fapanese Yen, the value of the Serfes Trust's net assets attributable to JFY
s, As ovresult, the Serfes Trost will incur galnsflcsses on its forvweard forsign aurrency exchange contracts which are used
te heddge the JPY Cass net assets 1o Japanese Yen, and sxch galngflosses are fully alecated to IPY Qs All sch JPY
hadging gains/losses have bean reflected in the total returns as presented in the Anancid Highlights and are induded in
realized and urraaized gainsflosses In the Sotement of Dperations. Aefer to Mobta 1 for further detalls on the Series Trust's

currency hedging stratagy.
Tha investrnent Mansger monitors the Series Trost' s currency axposuse on a daly basis

LIBOR Replocement Risk

Mary Snandial instruments wuse o may us a foating rate based on London Interbank Offered Rate [TLIBDR", the offered
rate at which rrajor Intemational banks con obtan wholesale, vnseoured funding. UBOR may be a sgnificant Factor in
detarmining the Series Trust's payment obligations under & derivative investment, the cost of financing to the Series Trust
o an ireesrent’s value or return 1o the Serfes Trust, and may b uped In other warys that alffect the Serdes Trust's
vestment performance. The United Kingdom's. Financial Conduwct Authority announoed a phass cut of LIBOR. Although
many LBOR rates were phased cut by the end of 2021, a selection of widely used USD LIBOR rates will continue to be
published through June 2023 In order to agslst with the transifion. The Sevies Trust may be emposed to finangdal
Enstrueveenits ded to LIBOA o determine payrment chligations, fnancrg terms, hedging stratvegies o imesiment value, The
transition process away from LIBOR might lead ko incressed valatility and Mliguidity In markets for, and reduce the
affectiveness of new hedges placed againg, instruments whom tenms cumently indude LBOR, The wdmate effect of the
LIBOR ransition procem is not expected tobe material to the Series Trust.

Qther Risk

On February 24, 2022, Rusda lamched o miliary irsasion inte Ukraime, Tha conflicy, which s ongoing as of the date that
the financial statements were available 1o be isaued, carries dgnificant risks for & world economy that has yet 1o fully
racaver from the ivgacts of the global COVID-19 pandernde, Related impacts to geo-politcal instabiliny, Framoal rarker
wolatility, and the imposiion of ssaction, may in tum impact the entity,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Im thie normal courge of business, the Trustes on bahall of the Seres Trist rmany snbsr Mo COMNacE that conmin 3 vanaly
of represmtations snd waranti=s and wihich provide genersl indamnifications The general indermnifications apply not ooly
1 the extent such representatom and warranties ane untmes but alse may cover thind parties such as the Serdes Trust's
Adminisrater, Audittr o hwestroant Mansger for daims related to the senfoes performed for the Series Trust The
Trusbes's mandmmum expoture under any Such Srang ements {5 unknown, is exposune only arises to the estent future daims
that hawee et yet occurmed are made against the Trustes, However, based on experence, the Trostes expacts the risk of
Bovs b b rermcibe,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUBSECLIENT EVENTS

Manazament parformed & subsequent syents radew up o Juns 16, 2023 which isthe date tha Bnend 8 statements weare
ivadlable tobae fsued

Effecgive March 1, 2023 theough June 16, 2023, there were subscription s of LED 1,450,605 and there were redemptons of
LED &0 7ol i raspeact of Class 1PV Linits, There wera difributioneol USD 338 607 in respact of Class IPY Uit

Effective March §, 2023 through June 16, 2023, there waere subscriptions of IS0 2,026,913 and there were redemptions of
LED 161,250 n respectof Olaes LED Unit, There wers distributions of USD 172,839 in respect of Olass USD Linita,

Thare are no other SEASCNT Shencs Do raport as thnd rdate 1o the Serdes Trust
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2022 28
NB
2022 28
44,360,824 42,098,585 6,103,874
246,901 244,187 35,405
1,944,245 281,896
8,598 1,247
670,470 97,211
608,088 88,167
45,574,173 6,607,799
1,751,045 253,884
231,524 33,569
40,620 5,889
31,882 4,623
22,607 3,278
18,627 2,701
11,221 1,627
2,388 346
85,858 12,449
4,335 629
2,200,107 318,994
43,374,066 6,288,806
49,108,421 7,120,230
(5,463,742) (792,188)
1,488,885 215,873
(1,759,498) (255,110)
43,374,066 6,288,806
3,088,746,795
333,814 9,253
16,556,208
1,677,663 9.87 1,431
144.99
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NB
2022 28
1,863,738 270,223
1,863,738 270,223
362,836 52,608
362,836 52,608
143,826 20,853
28,131 4,079
27,910 4,047
14,998 2,175
9,997 1,449
252 37
19,458 2,821
970,244 140,676
893,494 129,548
209,086 30,315
(992,902) (143,961)
(783,816) (113,645)
(6,247,822) (905,872)
1,544,686 223,964
(4,703,136) (681,908)
(5,486,952) (795,553)
(4,593,458) (666,005)
144.99
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NB
2022 28

893,494 129,548
(783,816) (113,645)
(4,703,136) (681,908)
(4,593, 458) (666,005)
(1,067,791) (154,819)
(699,421) (101,409)
(1,767,212) (256,228)
10,828 976,069 141,520
161,145 1,709,686 247,887
100,156 (8,658,063) (1,255,333)
837,800 (8,845,132) (1,282,456)
(14,817,440) (2,148,381)
(21,178,110) (3,070,614)
64,552,176 9,359,420
43,374,066 6,288,806

144.99
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2022 28
NB
2016 12 16
2012 10 15

2021 a

2017 22
LLC

BBH

UFJ
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CIMA

BBH

2022



GAAP

946

GAAP

FASB

12
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2022 28

2022 28
42,098,585 42,098,585
608,088 608,088
42,706,673 42,706,673

2022 28
85,858 85,858
85,858 85,858

2022 28
FASB ASC 740

50

100/202



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60 7,461,348 66 3,191,049
34
9,099,442 73 4,121,817
)
)
()
c)y > )
FX
2021 28 39,547,723 25,004,453 64,552,176
976,069 1,709,686 2,685,755
(8,658,063)  (8,845,132)  (17,503,195)
(1,067,791) (699,421)  (1,767,212)
(3,980,080) (613,378)  (4,593,458)
2022 28 26,817,858 16,556,208 43,374,066
2021 28 423,142 2,354,318 2,777,460
10,828 161,145 171,973
(100,156) (837,800) (937,956)
2022 28 333,814 1,677,663 2,011,477
2022 28 80.34 9.87
10.00
10,000
10
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28
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2022 28
1,751,045

10



ASC  815-10-50
a

1SDA

2022 28

Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank And Trust Co.

Westpac Banking Corporation

2022 28

Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank And Trust Co.

Westpac Banking Corporation

@

2022 28
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b
C
ASC 815
ISDA
1SDA
MNA
MNA
@
259,593 (4,085) 255,508
2,952 (2,952)
337,403 (25,308) 312,095
8,140 (8,140)
608,088 (40, 485) 567,603
MNA
MNA
@
23,104 23,104
4,085 (4,085)
4,129 (2,952) 1,177
25,308 (25,308)
29,232 (8,140) 21,092
85,858 (40, 485) 45,373
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608,088 (85,858)

2022 28

(930,768) 1,569,511
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0.65
0.30 0.35
2022 28
362,836 2022 28 18,627
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2022
28 14,998 2022 28 22,607
0.05
2022 28 27,910
2022 28 11,221
0.65
2022 28 362,836
2022 28 40,620
10
180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
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1970

2022 28

LIBOR

LIBOR LIBOR
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LIBOR LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 COVID-19
CovVID-19
2022 24 COVID-19
12
13
2022 26
2022 2022 26 12,950
1,052,631 312,916
2022 2022 26 286,053
1,116,943 244,192
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MEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMEMT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2022

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

Sarietn:
Efreirn del § in slcuntion, o valus oo of LD 41, 360, 824) LEL 4] AL 088 555
Foregn currency, st valoe {cost of LSO 286 501 TR H
Aeceruodefor nvemmaents sold 1,948 745
Racnivibdy for Leits saaed arse
Bt ridal e &0 AT
Lirwriali fid appeaciatian an b rwand foregn umancy eschangs cortrecti 60605
Total aesati 45,574,172
Uishilisie:
Papabd afor Unity redeem of LTS1.045
Payablefor invesmants parchased 291,524
Aoy ud dHrus or's bt SOEF
Agiriaid cuBodiaeh B ful-adnin i@ S i 31580
Aperugd nrumos lees 22E0T
Arergd moanagamend fees 18627
Acorrd agent com pany's fees 1L221
vyl professceal fses o
Urrgaliiad degraciation on lisre srd heraign surrnisy srch ange cordrsei 5,858
Arorued othar supen el & 358
Tetal Mabileing 2,200, 107
Het Asety Smributalide ba Urithalder sn 43,374 066
Benabysln of Net Agieta:
Pad in capital D 40,108431
Acoamal pted distributiors in escess of net irvestment incom & (483 78]
gt rat peli pod @Bens o vk e i fone g Cumen Ty AN At v arvd Forw ard

Sorgdgn Surtindy xchahge oo aldacti LABBRAS
et carer ikt dBpTECRNLIGR BN 6HE M STE B [aiagn curiandy (Fil aise and dorward

Tortign cumircy exchangs contracts SLTSB‘.-IEI‘Bi
et Asrets Aterfbutabile to Unithaldar 5D 43,5374 066
Mot Azeet Value perUnit
1B Cass 57 008 746, 795 + 195 814 |nats cotstareding) il 9358
LD Class LD 16,556,206 « LETT 663 Units outstending) L0 67

The accom paryiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
[Expressed in United States Dollar)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Irmrtmant Incoma:
braeres { nart of withholding teoes of 542)
Totml Irverstment frosme

Expanaas;
Belanigam e e
Dustributor*s fees
Do dd b delen umrat oy feed
Prcd yi onal leei
Agent company's lees
Trustim fows
Tearder agant feei
Registration faes
Cthay auperaes

Totwl Evpenses

et Invmm et Income

Realired and Unreslised Guin/{Laie):
Rapadiped jgardy o]
Insestm ent s in seaties
Fodugn CurTency PN ions wd forwaed foruign currency sutharge Coninects
Haf reakced losses
e i upresl ced appres o, fd sprecation)
e L P T
Foneign currency transed ions and forward fongign comency sschange contract s
Mot cEarge in unfealiied depreciaicn
Hee realied and unnedaed o

et derranse in net pdiet redulting from eperstion:

S0 LB63 738
LG THE

362,536
B2 AN
L4386
131
arsn
14,934
8,557
152
19,458
G0 i

209, g
(990,902

N 115

{6, 24T.B32)
LS4 656
CRENETT]

(5.886,952)

usD

The accom paryiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMEMNT OF CHAMGES IN MET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Incroze (Daoreare]in Mk S vake from:

‘Oparationa:

Mgt invedmerd mosm #

et realaediomses

Bt chirge i unrealced depretimion

et diwagigg | it iRt raiuRing I rom apraiond

Bhitribution: to Unithalder:
Y Oz
S0 Dess

Tkl iAo na

Capial Trnsactions:

ik snped
Y Qaes (10820 Units)
LD Qe [ 16, B45 Unirg)

Lhnit g rachiim id
Y Qave (1000156 Units]
USE aess (437, 050 Unnits)
Bt o rmass | s s resulting froe gt el Dror s ong

Total Deorease in bek Ogate

(et Ssretic
Bisprning of year
Ered of year

[ELoa) EgE
e

4; 703, 136]

14 593, 458}

(2,087, 791
{B29.421)

————rl
EJ.M;'.! lit

376,069
1, 09,686

(8, 6.58,063)
B85, 132

{14.BE7 480)
[1.178. 110}

&, 552 1T
LED 43,374,066

The accom paryiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

ORGAMIZATION

MELE Corporate Hybwid Seourities Fund {the “Fund”) it a series trust of the Nikko AM Offshone Funds, 2n open-ended unit
brust established by a supplesantal trust deed dated Decerrber 16, 2016 (ke “Supplermental Trust Deed™ ), under the laws
of the Capman islands. Aikko AM Offshore Funds was established by & master trat deed dated Ociober 15, 2002 [the
“Master Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Coyman islands ard is licensed with the Cigrran idands Moretary Authoity
pursuant to section d{1)a] of the Mutual Funds Act {3021 Aevition]. The Fund commenced operations on Febvuary 22,
Fiih

This Fund's assets are managed on 3 day-to-day basls by hikko AM Global Cayman Lienites! {the “Mareger”), The Managne
dedegates imestment management duties to Kikko Astet Manggement Co, Ud., {the “irvestment Managee']. The
Imeestmart Marager delegates investment management duties to Neuberger Berman imvestmen? Advisers LUC, {the “Sub-
Imestment Manager”). The admiristration of the Fund is ddegated to Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. {the “Custodian™
and “Sub-Administrator], a limited partrership organized under the s of the State of New York,

B Brothaers Harriman & Co. (“88H%) has priered into an agmement with State Street Corposation {SState Srest”)
under which 5tate Strert will aoguine B854 Invrstor Services business, whidh indudes its ostody, fund accourting and
agerinistration, tramsfer agency, deposiary, foreign exchange, trustee and securities lerding services. The transaction is
expecied io be completed in the third guarier of 2022, subgect to customary chosing tonditions and regulatory approvals.

Thie imvesienent objsctive of the Fund i3 10 achiees & mid to kg tenm fotal retunn through incorme and chpital appreciation.
Thar Series Trust shall mainly imeest in both irvestman grade and non-anvestmant grade hybeid securities that ane issued by
non-finarcisl conporate istuers and have been reted by either of Moody's, SEP or fitch. The highes reting from all three of
these agencies shall be applied to each corporate hybeid security and the average rating of the portfolia shall be 539-/80a3
of abeve.

Corparate hybrid debt securities ane sbructured insisuments thet combane bath equity and fied income characbirstics the
gemerally offer a means for ssueres to borew money from srvestons inretuen for imerest payments, Such cofporate issuers
iy wtilize hybrid debt for @ variety of rersom, including bolstering their capital levels, lowering ther wenghted mverage
ot of capital, dhversifying their Tunding sources ard menaging credit ratings, Though terms and corditions have become
increasingly standarndined, the specific characteniatics of each instrument [Such 33 payment conditions, the ritioof debe and
ecuity-like features, tame frames and applicable rates) can vary,

Thi Series Trust mury also ireest in fxed and floating rete debl securities, induding bonds, ssued by governments and
goeomiment related entitles.

Derivative instruments will be wied for efficient por tolio management and/or i it purpases, o well as for hedging.

Thes msets of the Series Trut may be beld in one or move currendes, ard The Series Trust will, in prindiple, engage in
ourrency hedging between the currency of denomination of sach Class (U5 Dollar for USD Clavs and Japaness Yen for JFY
Class] and the currency of the imvestments in the underlying portfolio, provided, howeves, that such hedging for JBY Class
may be performed through the U5 Sollar.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Beed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbran intemational Bark and Trust
Company [Cayman ) lmitesd (the “Trustee™ and the “Administrator”) i named a3 Trusties of the func.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UFI Morgan Sfarley Securities Co., 1bd fo act a3 Agent Company {the “Agent Company™}
and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Mongan Starley Securities Coy, Lt to act as Distributor [the “Distributor®) of
Urits in lapan or such other porson or mnstitution as may be appointed as distributor of the Series Trost by the Manager
feom time o time.

SUTARARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES

Thee Furd i Bn Irnstirment Company thit follws the accounting and reporling guidance in FASS Acrounting Standards
Cocificateon 3446

L of Eslimirfes

The secoarparying financisl statements kave besn prepared in scmrdsree with sccounting principles generally accepted in
the United Stated of Americs ["LLS GAAP®), The preperatson of firendal statement s in sicondance with LLS. GAAP fequenes
the Fund's marsgoment to meke stimate and asumptions that offect the reported amounts of asets and lishdities and
disskiures of contmgen! B3seti Bnd habidises 8 the date of fhe fanal dtxlementd and the feporled Bimdumts of
reverues and expenses durng the reporting period. Actual nesuls, induding the ultimate amourt realined upon the sale of
fair vahoed imvestments, could ditfer from those estimates and such differences may be significant.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SURARAARY OF SIGNIFRCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continund)

Bait of Accaunting
Securily and contraciual irarsactions ane recorded on 8 trade/coniract-date basia, interest income is recorded on an
efective viel basts, net of sny applicable vithholdng tax, Interest expense and other expenses arerecorded on an acorial
basis, Reslired gairs snd losses from Secuity ransections are computed on the basis of the Feerage cost of the securities
sold or covered, Charges in the waluathon of imestments are remorded n the Statement of Operatiors as unrealized
BppreciFinn or d eprecation.

Wirkurtion of imatelmenid

Bonds and other debt seourdities, including restricied secwrifies (other than shost-term obligations but ircheding lnted
isdues) are fair valued & their last sple price in the princips] market in which sudh Seturities ane normally traded, on the
bask of wluations fumished by @ pricing service, use of which bas been approved by the irvestment Manager, or if no sale
hat pesurred, the bid price on the valuation date &5 prosviced by brokers who ore rarket makers in the securitie s Al debd
securitics with bess than 12 months to maturity date, in principle shall be fair valued wing an amortizsed st offected by an
ffective yield acoumulated fsmantization methad 1o thes maturity date with adpostments bated on corrpaion with
muiwket prices & recuired.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value messurements and disdosures under LS GAAR, the Fund
ditckones the faie value a8 ity ivedtmers in b Riscardhy the priceitioes the inputs 19 valustion techriguet vied (o mesdure
the fair value. The hierarchy grves the highest priovity to valetions based upon vnadjusted guoted prices in active markets
for identical assety or Fabilities {leved 1 measunement) and the lowest priority o waluation baded upon unotrervable
inputs that are significant to the valuation (Levd 3 measurements). The guidance establshes three levnds of the fair vabue
hivrarchy &5 follows:

= Level 1 = inpuas that reflect vradjusted quoted prices in active markerts for identical investments that the Fund
hias the ability tos acoss at the messurement date:

®  Level 2 = imputs other than guoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset or liabilty either
directly o indirecily, incuding inputs in markets that arenat considered to b active:

= Level 3= inputs that are sgnificant ard unobseneable,

Irpits are used i applying the varess valuation technicues angd broadly refer 1o the asmmptions that madket paripants
i b irake vabuation dedteons, nduding assumplions about fisk. mputsmay include price infofmation, specific and broad
oregit data, liguicity statistacs, and othes factors, A financial knstrumer’s level within the fair valiee Merarchy & based upon
the lowaest level of ary input that is significont to the faie value measuement. Howeeer, the detenmination of what
corstitutes “observable™ recuires sigrifecant udgment by the Irestment Manager. The investmert Marager consicers
obserable data to b market data which is readily avadlable, regularty distrdsed or vpdated, refiable and vorifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by mdependent sources that are actively involved i the rdevant market. The categonzation of a
fimarcial Irstruamaent within the hizrarchy s based vpon the pridng trarsparency of the instnemert and does rot necessarly
correspond 1o the investmert Manages's peroeived sk of that irstrument,

Iprestinirds whase vabues are based on the guated market prises in actiee imarkeds, and therefore classiSied within Level 1,
wonld indude sctively traded equities, certain LS g ft and ign cbligations, and certéin money market
secidities, The imvestment Manager would not adjust the guoted price for such instruments, even in silvations where the
Furd held a langs position and a sale coild reasonably ienpact the ouoted price.

Irestmerds that trace in markeds that sre ot corsidened to be adtive, but sne valued bated on quoted market prices,
diepber quotations oo alternatiee peicing sources suppored by observable inputs ane clessified within Level 2, These inchade
ifmetbmen t-grade debd Lecurities, short-term imeestments and forward forsign cumrency exchange conbracts. As Lewel 2
imvestiments inchude positions fhat 2ne not traded in active makes and/or are subpest b trarsher restrictions, wabustions
miry be adjusted to reflect Bquidity andor non-trarsfersbility, which are generally based on availible market information,

Irvestmerts dassfied within Level 3 hewe significant unobeervable inputs, s they would trade infrequently. Leve 3
instrumerts would indude aswet-backed securities ard collateraliced morlgage obligations. As oboervable prices are not
available for those tecurities, the Furd would wie véluaSion tedhnicues 10 devinee the Sair value

The inputs or methadology wsed for valuing securities e rot necessanlly an indication of the risk asodated with iresting
in those securities,
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SURARAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES [continund)

Virluetion of imved menls fooatinueed)

The Following tabie peeserts the finandisl inst ruments caniied on the Statement of Asyss bnd Lisbilities by caption and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 28 1022 Further dasifimiions of the finencial nstruments are

presented in the Portfolio of Imestments.

Srvets ot Fair Valus Fair Valus ot
Lervull Lerved 3 Lewnld Fehruany 30, 2032
Fived Itom i Sacums (12 u] - =D £2, (58, 585 wEh sy 42,098 585
Farward Fofegn Cuirancy
Elmnﬂ- Contragiy - B0, D68 1508, sl
Toal ] = e A2 70873 [V.7:] ] 42706 6TE
Lishimies 31 Falr Value Fair Vslus ot
Lewed 1 Leweld 2 Lawveld Fehnusry 28, 2002
Farward Forsgn Curency
Exchenge Corfrats (7] - [4:54] 5 A5 [1,3u] [11:] NS85
Tosd =0 = LD B, A58 (1] IS0y B5 853

During, the year ended Febouary 28, 2022, there were no trandfers in o out of Level 3. The Fund's policy is 1o detenmine
levelling and dsiess o transfers as at a year end date.

Foveign Currency Translotion
Asnts and liabilities hald in coreencies other than United States Dollar ("USD° of {he “Furctional Cummency™] are transisted
tar the Furctional Currency 2t the rate of exdhange prevailing at the financial statement date income and expenies are
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the dite on whidh the income o expense is intureed. Realired and
urrealired gains and losses anising on foregn currency tramsactions are induded in the Statement of Operations in the
pesia it wtich thiy et

The Fund does not isalate thit portion of the results of operrtians cesulting Srom changes in foreign exchange rates on
imestments from the fuctuations arising from changes in market prices of seosrities held. Such fluctations ane indluded
with the ret realined and wnreslzed gain of loss from imvestmen

Tacame Tekes

Urdder the current laws of the Cayman slands, there ane ro incomes, withholding, capital gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund, In certain jurisdictions ather than the Cayman Islands, forelgn taxes may be withbeld a1 source on dhvidends ang
interest received by the Furd. Capital gains derived by the fund in such juriscictions generally will be exempt from foneign
income or withholding taxes 3t source, The Fund intends to conduct its afairs such thiat it will not be subject 10 income 1ax
in any jurisdiction, As a result, ro provision foar income tases has been made in the finandal statemenis. Unitholder may be
tamed on their proportionate share of the Fund’s tax basis ircome based on thelr individual ciroumstances.

The Furd follows the scthoritative guidance on accouring for and cesclosure of uncertainty n tax positions [Financial
Acoounting Sandards Soard (*FASE"] « Accounting Standards Codification 24, which reguires the Manager to determine
whather 3 tax position of the Fund is more Biely than rot 1o be sustained upan examination by the apphicable tazing
athority, indluding resclution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the tedhnical merits of the position.
For taa positions mesting the more [dely than not threshold, the e benefit recogniced in the firandal satements is
rechiced by the lrgest benefit that has a greater than fifty parcent Bielihood of being realized upon uitimate set themend
with the relmvart taxing authority, The Manager has cetermined that there is mirdmal or ro eFect on the finarcial
staterments being under this authonitaties guicance.

Farwaind Fargign Cumindy Exthange Coalracts

The Furd may enter Into forward forelgn ourency eschange contracts 1o hecge agalrst forelgn currengy exchange i
risks on all or a portion of non-USE denominated imestments of for efficient portfolio mansgament purpotes. When
ertering nto a forward fonegn curmency exchange contradt, the Fund agrees 1o recebve or delbver @ fioed quantity of
foreign cumrency for an agresedupon prioe on an agreed future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's nes
ecuity therein, representing wnrealized appreciation/{cepreciation] on the comrads as measured by the differerce
between the forward forsgn ourency exchange rates at the dates of eriry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
reporting cate, Is induded in the Statement of Assets and Uabllities, Realized and unrealized gains and losses ane inchucied
in the Statement of Operations.
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SUPARAARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [2omtinued])
Forvord Foreign Cumercy Exchange Comtrocts [combiowed)

These imstruments irsshe maroet risk, oredit risk, or both kirds of risks, in excess of the amount recogrired in the
Statemert of Assefs snd Lishilities, Risks afse Srom the possible nabity of counterparties 1o meet the tenms of their
comracs and from movement in currency and seourities values and interest rates. In addition to the dass leved hedging.
the Furd had reslized gaing of USD 3,191,049 on 6] forward foreign cumrency exthings contrsets during the year with 2n
average notional of USE F4401, 348 and an average term to maturity of 66 dayy The Fund abio had realized losses of USD
AN2L,817 on 34 forward foreign curnency exchange contracts held at the Class JPY Hedged level durirg the year with an
iverage notional of USD 9,098,442 and an aversge tenm o maturity of 73 days. The sverage notionad of the Sorward
forsgn currendy exdrarge contracts held for class level hedging throughout the year is broadly comistent with the NAY of
the JPY class at each pownt in time.

Cash and Foreign Gurreacy
Cash and foreign currendy comp all csrrency held with Brown Srothers Hariman & Co., and overnight snd other short

term placements with other finarcial institutions,

LTS

The net assets of the Fund are divided irmto JPY Clays Uinits and USS Clazs Units, The Uinits ane denoiminated inJapanese Yen
and United States Dollar, JPY Class Uedts and USD Class Units are sailable 1o an eligble smaestor who is amy parson,
corporation of entity which ks not {i] a citleen or resident of the U5, 2 partnership ceganized or existing in the U5, or any
corperation, trust o other entity orgarized unger the laws of or esiviang in the US; (i) resedent or dorricled in the Congran
Islkainds (euchouding any cbject of a charitable trus! or power or an exempted or non-resden? Cayman Tskands company): {iii}
uriible 19 wibscribe for or hold Units withaut violating applicable laws, or {iv] @ custadian, romines, oF trustee for any
person, corpaoration o entity cescribed B (i} 1o (i) above. Both the JPY and USD classes share proportionately in the gain
and lossis of the Fund level mvesteents. n addizion, the [PY class receives gaies and kasses froem the FX fovwards held a1
the JPY Class level for hedging purposes. Aefer 1o Note 1 for further details on the Fund's currency hecging strategy.

The: Manager may geterming 10 issue one of mong classes of Units of the: Fund without prior notice 1o or writton consent of

Al of the net assets attributalble 1o JPY Class Units and USD Cless Units are held by ane Unitholder,

3 Claas WED Clars Totad Fund

Halance ot Febmuary 16, 20010 USD  ERGT.TIZ UMD JS004853 USD £A51AT
Submriptions dunng the year 476,060 1,709,688 2GH5TEE
Recemptions during the ree (658 06:3) (BB4E 230 (17,505 §95)
Custributions (L0867, Tae) [, 42L) (17720
It oo | VT it . e M g e S i v 13,980, 0 (613378} 4,553 458)
et Acports wt Febeuny 39, 2002 LIE0 5017858 USD 16 556308 USD 43378065
B bt o Uin R i s o Fabruary 78, 2021 473,142 21,354,318 TIT A0
Lt bl ghurifeg 1hal b 10878 I6L 145 L7LET3
Uity redoem id during the e 1400, 1561 {37, 6003 [937.958)
Bum ber of Lings n issue o Pebrusry 28, 2007 Ellll 1LB7 7668 20LL4TT
bt Amrt Vsl i Ul o Fabruary 18, 2002 usD BO.34 USD .87

Subscriptions for Umits

LSO Class Units were first itdoed ot an initisl itsee price of US0 1000 per Unit 10 Clast Units were Gt istued o2 an ingial
issue price of J#y 10,000 per Unit. On and after initial dosing day, the minimum iritial subscription for US0 Sas Units per
subseriber B 10 Units or more, and in multiples of 1 Unit theresafier, The minimum initial subscription far JPY Class Lnits
jper subscriber i 1 Unitor more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter.

The Marager may wakee o change the minicnem nitlal and adcitional subscription amounts set forth abose B its sole
discretion froam time 1o time.

Sales Charge

In addifion fo the substription price, the applicant shall pay & sales charge caloulated ot up fo 3% (excluding $ny ta
epplicable] of the purchase price, to the Distrbutor,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

URITS [eetinueed)

Liait Redemgtons

The fund recognizes redemptions in accordarce with the authoritatiee guidanoe on distinguithing Babdities from equity.
Redernptions, whether expredasd as United States Dollar, [apanese Yen or Linits, sne mp‘iitﬂ &% Rebilities when each of
the United %ates Collar, Japanese Yen and Unit amounts reqguested in the recemption notice becomes fined, which
pererally mray ooour sither at the fime of the recsipt of the natioe, or on the last day of » fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the reguest. As a result, redemption paid after the end of the year, but based vpon year end et assets are
reflected & redemprtions payabde 01 February 28, 2032, There were WSO 1,750,045 of redermprlions payasbde as ot Febsuery
28, 2022, ircheted as Payoble for Units redesmed in the Statement of Asurts and Labilities,

Repurchase of Lits

Each Unitholder may mequest & repurchase of Uirits by the Fund unless repurchases bive been sutpended by the Manager.
Urats will be repurchesed daily 81 the Net Asset Value per Unit a5 at the relesant Repunchase Day (each Valuation Day, or
such other day o dins 84 the Mardger may from time o time detenming in redpect of the Series Trost), There will be no
rieprurchase charge on repurchases of Units beld over fve years,

Campuliory Redemplion

Inihe evert that the Trstee o the Marager shall determine that any Uniss of ary Qlass of 8 Sevies. Trust ane besng held by
of for the benefit of & person who is not an Eligibde tmester for such Sevies Trust of thit such holding would cause the
Trust o thie Series Trust to be recuined to register, be subject 5o tax o wiclate the laws of any urisdiction, o if the Trostes
of the Mana ger has reason to doubit the legitimacy of the source of mories used 1o fund the subsonigtion or purchise of
such Units, o for whatever reaton (which mey not be disdosed by the Trustee o the Mansger to Unithalder] that the
Trustes of the Manager corsiders spproprinte a1 its abaobute dncreSon having regard o the imerests of the Uritholder of
the relevant Class or the Uritholder of the Series Trus? a8 o whole, then the Manager, after consuttation with the Trust e,
iy dineet the halder theneaf 1o well [subject 1o the provisins daseribed bolow in the section keaded =Transter of Units™)
such Units within 10 days and prowide to the Trstes and the Manager evidence of such sale, fafing which the Manager
iy P Such Urits,

Temadaction of the Fumd
Upan termination, the Manager will nealize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out of retaining adespuate provision
for all liabslities propetly payable and retaining provdsion for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
proceeds of that realizstion 1o the Unithalder proportionately 1o thedr respectie imterests in the furd ax of the date of
termiration of the Fund,

Dslributons fo Unitholder
The Marsger may, in B3 iole discretion, dedere distritudions and ro guerantee b made that thess will fake place.
Distributions will be declared on each Distribution Record Date and caloulated on each Ex-Distributhon Date. Disteibution
Ferind is 2 period commencing from the calendar dey following 1he preceding Qistribution Record Bate and ending on and
including 1ha Bistnbution Record Cate, The distributions will be paid on the relevart Disteibution Fayment Date, prosiced
that such amount (i any) declared with respect to each Class of Units shalll only be paid out of the Series Trust's net
incoeme, realived and urrealized capital gains ang ary distributable funds of the Series Trest attributable to such Class of
Uridts a8 determined by the 04

The declaration of distributions 1o Unitholder feduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit without ary corresponcding
change in the rumber of Class Level Urits por Unitholger, This results in a Unitholder's cverall ireestment in the Fung
beang reduced, In addition, any distributions during 8 year whach are in excess of the Fund's rei @ncrease in net assets
resulting from operatiors results i a portion of the distributien being return of capital,

The amaunt of distributions, if any, will be detenmined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no representation or
Ruareet ef i race that o dinributen will be made in respect of each of #ny Distribution Period,

Copitalization

Thee Net dsset Value por Unit i3 caloulsted for each Dealing Cay (each Valustion Day, o such othier day of days ad the
Manager may from time (o time determing in respect of the Series Trust), by divicing the difference n value between the
Furd™s sssets ard Fabiities [including acerued fres and expenses of the Fund) by the rumber of Units cutstarding.

The Trust Deed stipulstes that the number of Units 10 be isued in the Fund shall be urlinited a5 the Maneger shall
detirmine and shall be without par value,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

DERTVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRURENTS

Accouriing Starlarcs Cocification 815-10-50 reauires disclosures abomst derivative instruments and hedging activities, B
recuires that the Fund ditdions: a] hoow and wivy sn entity uses derivative instruments, b) bow derivative irsinaments and
related hedged items are accounted for and <) how dervative instrument s and related hedged (tems affect an entity's
finarcial padition, finsrcsl performanas and cash flws,

The Fund trarsacts fanward derivaiive mstruments primely Tor hedgicg pueposed with each instrument’s primary risk
exposune bring foreign exchange ridk. The foreard foreign ounrency exchange comracis held by the fund do not gualify as
hedges for accounting pupeses under the nequitements of ASC 815, The fair value of these derivitive instruments is
incluled in the Statement of Assels amd Liabdties with chamges in fai vabue reflected as realived gainsf{kosses) or net
dharge in unreskred spprecistion/depreciation)] on derivetives within the Ststement of Operatians (Note 2).

The Fund may enter info &n intemational Swaps mnd Derivatier Assodation, Inc Mester Agreement {71504 Metter
Agreement™] with its counterparties in orded 1o mitigete countenparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement is fypically
negatiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-ateral tenrs and conditions for all subsequent deriating
transaetions. The 1506 Masier Agreement allme fov the petting of all amounts owed 12 o cue from coumenpary into 3
sirghe ned payrtent if 8 credit evert of default should ocoud.

The Furd has decied tonot offset fiir value receivables and payables for dexirative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assets and Liabilizies,

At February 28, 2082 the Furd had entered into the following derhative assets by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under a Master Metting Agresment {*MNAT) and net of any collaterallreceined by the Fund:

Dimrhative Azsats Derhativer Non-carh Cath gk Ampant of
Counterparty Hl_ﬂtn-lm ivenilwbie for Offset Colfatersl Recenad Collateral Reaeived Darivativcs 2 pets”
Goldman fachs o 25854 ORD ) LD - LD =10 I54.500
oyl Bank of Cwrads 298 19EY) = = =
State Strmet Bank And Trust Co. LERET L] {25,308 - - NE2,005
Wirstpar Banking Conpor stin 8,140 £, 140] - - -
Total s GODOEE WSO (E0ABS) USD -WsR -use 56T B3

At February 28, 2022 the Fung had endered into the following derivatie Rabilities by counterparty net of smaunts sailible
for offset under a MNA and ret of any collatenal pledged bey the Fund

Duriative Nt Amount of

Linhifitie ¢ Derhativer Maoercarh Cath Darbative
Counterpay Suljaet ta s MM Avsilebie for Oset Collstersl Madged Collwersl Pladged  Lisbilmies
Otiband AlA (1] FLETTIE — LSty - B0 — S0 23, 104
Goldm an Sutha 4,085 {4,085) - - -
Royal Bank of Caruda 4129 {2.952) - - L17?
Seate Steawt Bank and Trum Co. 25,308 {25.308) - - -
Wirtna: Bankong Conpor laan ___ 835 5, 240 - = L0532
Tetal [ 55,850 USD [ - USD - usn ]

L Mat et sl the 0ot ssount revenablespovabls from Be cousSerpiety in e event of defaull

At Februbry 28, 2072 the Furd had entered into the following devivatives:

Puset Derhvatiei Lis Darkathai
Derbrwd ey Stwtement HEpiamant
Mot o ogarted for ap of fis e and of Barets and
e b gl Ul!llllll.n-ﬂ_lﬂ! F wir Vil Liskslies Locstion Foir Vinhis
Forward foreign aarrency | Linneslioed sppneiation Urwnalzad depreciation
enchange Lontrscs onforeerd fonsign o forwied lomeign
| Curianey R ] furnerd p oeckange L= EOS,088  aurenty sathings LD {B5.A5E)
ot racts Er\lh'lﬂl
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

DERTVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRURENTS (cortinued)

The eflect of derhvirive instuments on the Satement of Opermions for the year enced February 28, 2002:
Changs In Wnrealaed

Lo ation of Raalized Apprmchtion or
Darbakiver Mot docounted  Gainor (Loes) Gakn or (Loss) [Deprecstion) an
for mi Hadging Indtruments  on Derbvihoas af Derhatih Derbeathi
Heet resliced losses on forward iomign
Forwird fanegn asrindy elnisy i chiangh Contiaeg
anchanpe contracti charige in uregel fed appreciation
{Curmency Rik ) m1w-udfommyrﬂvuchmzmrﬂrul: LD PaEL e8] LD 1585511

TAANAGERMENT NEES

The Marager is entitled 1o receive out of the et of the Seres Trost & marsgement fee of & total of DES% per annum
0L 305 per anrwm in respesct of fee for the Menages and the ir Menager and 0.35% per anfum in repect of fee
for the Sub-smvestmert Mareger) of the Net Asset Valee scerued on, and calaulated as at, each Valustion Day and payable
manthly i arreers 0 addition, the Manager it alio entitled to be reimburted out of the st of the Series Trust Sor ary
expermes incuned by it in the praper perfarmance of s powers and duties a5 pearmitted under the Master Trust Deed,
During, the yeor ended February 28, 2002, the Manager eamned fees of WSD 362836 of whidh WSD 18627 i still
outstanding as of Februaey 28, 2022,

Thee Manager walll pay the fiees of the imvestment Manager out of iBs fees. The investment Manager wall pay a Tee 1o the
Subr imvestment Manager oud of the fes recefnzd by the Imoestment Marager.

CUSTODUAN AND SLIB-ADRMIMSTRATOR'S FEES

Thi Fund has & custody and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Hammiran & Co. (the “Custodien” and “Sub-
Agdmintstrator”) for which the Custodian recebees a fer calzulated and paid monthly based on 1otal assets and transaction
LA

The Custocian and Sub-Administrator b emiitbed 10 recebee out of the assets of the Seres Trus an adminkiration foe
linchuging transler agert fee) coloulated based on the Net Asset Value o5 gt each Valuation Day at the following anrual
rate

- DO i o [ared inclusiing] LSO 250 mdlon,;

- LLOTH up to (ard bnchaing] LSE 500 milion;

- [LOG% aver LISDIS00 il

Ir aciition to the albore NAY based fee, there B 0 transaclional based fee charged, which varies depending on the volume
of trantactioni.

Such admiristration fee is payable monthly in arfears, and subject to the minimum snnual fee of US0 ET,000, In sddition,
the Custodian and Sub-Adminkstrator is abo entitled to recelve oustomary safokeeping fees and trarsaction charges. All
ot-of -pocket expenues of the Custadian and Sub-Administrator thall also be bome by the Seet Trost.

TRUSTEES FEES

The Trustes i enditled to receive oud of the aweis of the Sevies Truat a combined fee at the rate of D015 per annum of
the Net Asset Valun aconued on, and caloulated as at, each Valuation Cay and payable semi-arnually in amears, subject toa
minimum anmial fee of USS 15,000, Suring the year ended February 28, 2022, the Trustee comed fiees of USD 12,998, and
theve ks am amount of LS 23607 still sutstanding s of February 28, 2032,

AGENT CONMPANYS FEES
The Agent Compeny i entitbed to recsive out of the sisets of the Series Trust & fee 81 the rate of 0.05% per snoum of the
het Assel Value socrued o, and caloadated as at, each Valurtion Day and payable quantedy i arrears. Duning the yesr

ended February 28, 2022, the Agerd Company earmed fees of USD 37800, of which USD 11,231 is still outstanding a3 of
February 28, 2022,
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MNEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

HETRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Bistrbutor s entitled 1o recelve 0wt of the assets of the Seres Trust 2 les 32 the rate of 0655 per arnum of The Net
Asgat Malue aconuied on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Duy and payable quantedy in arrears. During the year ended
Fabwuary 28, 2022, the Distributar eamed fees of USD 362,836, of whach USD 40,620 s s1ill sutstandang as of February 28,
Fjerrd

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

Thee cxrits and eapinses in cornection with the establishment of the Series Trust end the offering of the Units, tagether
with the establishment of the Trust, induding the costs and esperses of preparing and printing any prospecius of
el dnatay brochures requaned, ane estinuted to amount 1 approxematey USD 180,000, Such costs and experdes will be
mrnetized withan the first free (5] firarcial yeers of the Series Trest urdess the Trostee decides that some other method
shall be appliest. The Administrater receives USD 1,500 per gonum for FATCA / CRS compliance serioe,

FINAMCLAL RESK MANAGEMENT

Thit Fung's activithes expose it to o vaniety of fnandal risks: rrarket risk [induding price risk, interest rate risk, and ourrency
risk), ereit rivk and liguidhy itk

Marked Risk
Al iproestarents present a risk of loss of capital, The irvestirent Manager moderates shis risk through a careful salecsion of
secunities and other firancial instrements,

Thite Furd's ifvestment management prooess i described in Note L The primary determinant of the Fund's ability 1o mest
its objectree of mid to long termn capital apprecistion while eamming incomme i depardent of the performance of the
imvestmentin the Underlying fund,

This Fund's irmastment mansgement process i detcribed in Note L The Fund's overall imsceet potitions are moritored on
a daily basis by the fund's imvestmend Manager.

The value of the Fund's investmaents is affected by 2 number of factors, including but not limited to, dhanges in the wider
econpemy, financlal and currency markets, foreign cureency exchange rates, imerest f@ie moements and the credit ratngs
of debt mers

The Fund may enter imo fiorsand foreign ourrency eachan ge contrad s which to varying degrees represmnt 2 market risk in
emecass of the amount reflected on the Fund's Statement of Assets ard Uabdlities, The notioral amount of the contract
represents the extent of the fund's participation in these financial instruments, Market risks assodated with sach contracts
s e cud 10 the possible movements in forsign exchange rates underhing these instruments,

Orther markes and oredit Aisks indugle the possibility that there may be an iilicadd rmarket for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the corract may rot directly corndlate with charges in the walue of the underlying currendes or that the
oounterparty 1o 3 forwand contract defauks on its obligation 1o perform urder the terms of the cortract, The Fund's
exposune to loss due 1o counterparty non-perfomance on open forwards foreign cumrency excharge contracts s imised 1o
the urrealired appreciation irherent in such firandal instruments which are recognised in the S1atement of Assets and
Liahilities.

Taferest Rate Rk

Thie Fund's exposire 10 changes i irtenest rates relates primarily te the Fund's investmerns in cebe seourities contracts,
Imterest rate fluctuations may also affect the fair value and priding of derheative instruments purchased or sold short by the
Fursd, The irvestmert Marager contiruously moritors the Fund's exposune 1o interest rate rsk and the Fund's averall
interest sensithity on a regular bansls,

Creadit Hitk

Crexdit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would inour if the counterparties or issuers of debt seouities falled
b perfiormn pursuant 10 the terms of their obligations to the Fund. For exchange-teaded contrscts; the exchange acds 2 the
counterparty 1o specific trartactiont and, therefore, bears the risk of defvery to ard from courerparties of spedfic
posticns. The Fund's management doetnot contider that onedit rink related 1o xpen cerivatine contracts willl hirve materisl
adwverse effect on the firancial condition of the Fand,
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINANCLAL RSE MANAG EMENT [tomtnued)
Eredit Aisk {continued)

Wihile both the LS Bankrugrtoy Codie and the Securities inwestor Protection act of 1970 seck (o protect customer propeny
inthe meent of a fadlure, insohanoy or Bquidation of an institution, thens i no cartairty that, in the event of a failure of an
institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not inour losses due to 5 assets being urenailablie for a pericd
of thme, ultimately bess than ful recosery of s assets, or both, Because all of the Fund's cash s in custody with a single
institution, such losses coudd be sgnificant ard coulld materially impair the ability of the Fund to achimee its irsestment
objective. The Fund &5 subject 1o crecit risk 1o the extent that this institution may be unable to Tulfill ks obligatiors to repay
DTS S o,

Liguaidily Risk
Irregstors shauld be awarne that the value of Units might fall as well a5 dse. investment in the Fund imvolves 3 degree of risk,
Uheve can be no dssurance (hat the Fund's irmvesement objective vill be sdhieved,

The Furd Is exposed to dally repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has safficient resources to
meet the prisent and fone be newds of it luainevs operations and, if necessary, the Equidity to fund repurchases and
achieve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller copital base, This position s monitored conSnually by
mmaganent {0 embure that the Fund has the ability 1o meet its obligations.

At February 28, 2022, substantially all the imvestments of the fund were traded in the over-the-counter market,

Currency Ritk

The Fund holds emestiments denarminated in USE, which is the Fund's functional and presentational currency, However,
the Fund expects 1o hedge Japansse ¥on, the value of the fund's net assets attributable to JPY Class. As a result, the Fund
will incur gairsAosses on its forward foreign currency exchange contracts which are used 1o hedge the JPY Class pat assets
to Japanese Yer, and such gainsflosses are fully allocated to JPY Class, All such JFY hedging gains/iosses have boen
reflected 0 the fofal returns & presented in the Firancial HighBights and are incuded in realired and unrealized
gairsfosses in the Statement of Operations, Aefer 1o Note 1 for further detalls on the Func®s currency hedigng strategy.

Thie Imvestrrent Mo ger manitors the Fund™s ourrency expodure on b dily basi,

LIBOW Replmoenmzal Risk

Kany finamdal irstruments wse of may use a floating rate based on London (mberbenk Ofered Aate (CLIBOR"), the offored
rate 31 which major international barks can obtain wholesale, vrsecured funding. LIBOR may be a significam facior in
determining the Fund's payment obligations vnder a deriartive imvestment, the cost of finending 1o the Fund or an
imestment's value or return to the Fund, and may be wed in other ways that affect the Fund's investment performance,
The United Kingoom's Fimarcial Conduct Authority announced a phase out of UBOR, Although many LIBOR rates were
phased out by the end of 2021, a selection of widiely used USE LIBORA rates will continue 10/be published through June 2023
in order 1o assivt with the trandtion. The Fund may be exposed to financial nstrumends tied to USOR to determine
payment chligations, financing terms, bedging strategies or investment value The transition process away from LIBOR
might lead fo increased volatility and illiquidity inmerkets for, and reduce the effectiveness of new hedges placed againsg,
instromiints whase termi curently indude UBOR. The ultimate effect of the LIBOR trarition prooess B not expected to be
material to the Fund,

Other Risk

I 2020, the DOVID-19 autbreak was declared 2 pandemiz by the Wodld Health Orgarization. The situation is dynamic with
warious ditbes and courtries arpund the world responcing in differers ways 1o address the outbreak, The rapid developament
and fluigity of this situation prechades any prediction os its ulimate impact, which may hive 8 contirued adverse impact
o economic and market corditions and trigger a penod of gobal ecoromic slowdown.

The Trustee and Irmeestmend MJN,FI‘ are n‘lﬁ'lrbbl“l‘g developmernts lﬂll‘.l.r“ to COWIC-19 and ane ﬂ'.'ll!l'ﬂlﬁ&fl‘q their
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from glabal beatth crganizations,
relvant gonernmerts, and general pandernic nesponte bt pradioes.

On Februsry 24, 2022, Aussia lasunched a erilitary irvasion into Llesine. Russia’s imvadion of Ukrsine carvies digrificant itk
Tar & world BT thit ket yet 10 fully reasser from the impacts of the ‘lml COVID-19 pardemic. The 'n‘q:-m of The

oomequential geo-political instability, financial market volatility, 2nd imposition of sanctions on the mtity are not possible
L Foresast at this time
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MEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

CORARNITRAENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the rormal course of busieess, the Truestee on behall of the Fund may erter ime contrcts that contain a variety of
repeseritations and wanarties ard which prodde gerersl indemnificstions, The general indesmnifications apply rot anly
b the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but also may cover thind parties such as the Furd's
Acmiristrator, Audiior o vestment Manager Sor clsins nelited to the services performed for the Furd, The Trustee's
it exposure Lnder any such amangements s wrknown, 85 exposure only anises 1o the extert future daims that
ke pot gt pecufred Sre insde againet the Trates, Howiver, based on operience, the Trudtes expects the fisk of low to
I memmod e

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Managemen! performed a subsequent everts review up 1o July 26, 2022, which is the date the finarcial statements were
rvallable 1o be baund,

Effective March 1, 3032 through luly 26, 2002, there wene subscorptioes of USD 12,950 and thede weine redemnplions of USD
1,052 63 in respect of Class JFY Units, There were cistributions of USD 3 12,5916 in respect of Clas JP¥ Unigs.

Effective March 1, 3032 through July 36, 2022, there were subscriptions of USD 286,053 and there were recemptions of
USDY 1,106,943 in respect of Class USD Urits, There were distributionms of USD244,192 in respect of Class USD Units,

Theere are po other sagnificant events to report a5 they relate 10 the Fund
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2023
120,046,315.89 17,405,515,341
67,423,051.04 9,775,668,170
52,623,264.85 7,629,847,171
2,026,385
609,383
9.06 1,314

8,128
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
MA 02110 50
50 Post Office Square Boston, MA 02110, U.S.A.
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3,219

2023

12
13

200,876,825,707
1,829,524,864
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2022 31
2022 2021
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
2,439,355 353,682 1,941,186 281,453
70,125 10,167 71,250 10,331
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
114,502 16,602 218,179 31,634
168,009 24,360 156,805 22,735
1,337,097 193,866 1,183,495 171,595
365,000 52,921
1,984,608 287,748 1,558,479 225,964
480,000 2022 31
2021 31
480,000 480,000 69,595 480,000 69,595
9,476,078 1,373,937 7,920,957 1,148,460
9,956,078 1,443,532 8,400,957 1,218,055
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
2022 16
129332
144.99
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2022 31
2022 2021
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
2,439,355 353,682 1,941,186 281,453
70,125 10,167 71,250 10,331
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
1 0.145 1 0.145
1 0.145 1 0.145
11,940,687 1,731,280 9,959,437 1,444,019
114,502 16,602 218,179 31,634
168,009 24,360 156,805 22,735
1,337,097 193,866 1,183,495 171,595
365,000 52,921
1,984,608 287,748 1,558,479 225,964
480,000 2022 31
2021 31
480,000 480,000 69,595 480,000 69,595
9,476,079 1,373,937 7,920,958 1,148,460
9,956,079 1,443,532 8,400,958 1,218,055
11,940,687 1,731,280 9,959,437 1,444,019
2022 16
129332
144.99
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2022 31
2022 2021
17,934,583 2,600,335 18,599,369 2,696,723
17,934,583 2,600,335 18,599,369 2,696,723
(2,125,733) (308,210) (1,225,898) (177,743)

(13,544,787)  (1,963,859) (15,229,787)  (2,208,167)
(245,193) (35,551) (227,557) (32,993)
(15,915,713)  (2,307,619) (16,683,242)  (2,418,903)

2,018,870 292,716 1,916,127 277,819
(98,749) (14,318) (11,500) (1,667)
(98,749) (14,318) (11,500) (1,667)

1,920,121 278,398 1,904,627 276,152

(365,000) (52,921) (182,200) (26,417)

1,555,121 225,477 1,722,427 249,735

1,555,121 225,477 1,722,427 249,735

144.99
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2022 31

¢ > ¢ ¢ >y > >y )

2021 480,000 69,595 7,920,957 1,148,460 8,400,957 1,218,055
1,555,121 225,477 1,555,121 225,477
2022 31 480,000 69,595 9,476,078 1,373,937 9,956,078 1,443,532
144.99
2022 31
2022 2021
1,555,121 225,477 1,722,427 249,735
98,749 14,318 11,500 1,667
365,000 52,921 182,200 26,417
2,018,871 292,716 1,916,127 277,819
(132,044) (19,145) 909,296 131,839
171,551 24,873 (394,011) (57,128)
(475,422) (68,931) (101,297) (14,687)
1,582,955 229,513 2,330,115 337,843
1,582,955 229,513 2,330,115 337,843
7,947,000 1,152,236 5,628,385 816,060
(98,749) (14,318) (11,500) (1,667)
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
144.99
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2022 31
3096T
IFRS
IFRIC 2022 31
IFRS 1ASB IFRIC
IFRS  IASB IFRIC
() )
)
12
2022 31 2021 31
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12
30
2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
100
190
2022
17,934,583
2022 31
2022 2021
19 2021 19 (365,000) (182,200)
(365,000) (182,200)
(365,000) (182,200)
2022 31 2021 31
2022 2021
2021 10 21 22 1,920,122 958,983

19 2021 19

(365,000) (182,200)




2021
2021

10

441,903

2023

2022

2021

31

467,911
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2022 31
2022 31 a
( ) ( )
1,453,679 474,263
7,323,113 520,898
3,429,574 246,312
1,227,939 86,759
110,482 8,865
106,095
13,650,882 1,337,097
2021 31
2021 31 a
( ) ( )
1,422,718 120,838
8,299,627 720,942
3,786,710 210,652
1,556,076 120,670
164,656 10,393
106,470
15,336,257 1,183,495
(a
(b
(c
2022 31 80,000 2021 80,000
http://www.smth.jp/en/
2021 12 2022
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NIEEKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Note 22 2021
USD USD

Assels
Current Assets

Cash and cash equvalents 9431204 7,247,000

Accounts receivable 2,439,355 1,941,186

Accrued moome and prepard exp age 0125 71,250
Total Current Assets 11,540,656 Q050 436
Total Mon-Current Assets - -
Total Assers 11,940,686 Q950 436
Liabilities and Equity
Current L iabilities

Accrued ecpenses and defarred mcome 114,502 218179

Acoounks payable 168,005 156,805

Armounts parable o alfltes 1,337.097 1,182495

Amounts payable to affiliates — group ta relief J65,000
Total Current Liabilities 1984608 1558479
Equity

Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Hokders of the

Company

Share capital (51 par vahie, 480,000 shares

athorized, 430,000 sharesizssed and  cutstanding a8 31 450,000 450,000

Barch 2022 and 2021

Eetamed eamings 2476078 7,920,957
Total Equity D98GR 8400957
‘Total Linbilities and Equity 11,540,636 99509436

The annexed nobes from 1 to # form an mtegral part of these fmancal satements

These financil statements were spproved by the Board of Directors on 16 Seplember 2022 and autheorised for 1szue and signed on
1ts behalf by

DocuSigned by:
[ OFESAFCTIREAFE

D Cruis=
Director

Company registered mumber 129332
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AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Note 022 2021
USD USD
Acsrts
Curremt Assets
Cazh and cagh equmalents 431,206 7,947 000
Acooumts pecers able 2439355 1,841,186
Acerued income and prepand expense 0025 71,250
Total Current Assers 11,540,686 9,950 436
N Current Assets
Inw esterent in subsidiary 3 1 1
Total Hon-Current Assels 1 1
Total Assets 11,540,687 9950437
Liabilitles and E quity
Current L iabilities
Accrued expenses and deferred moome 114,502 218,179
Accoumts payable 168,008 156,805
Amounts payable to affilistes 1,337,097 1,183 455
Amounts payable to affiliates = group tax relief 365,000 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,584,608 1558479
Equity
Capltal and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Company
Share capital (81 par value, 480,000 shases authorized,
450,000 shares 155ued and outdandmg at 31 March 2022 and 40,000 450,000
20213
Retarned eammgs PATETE 7520958
Total Equity 2,956,079 8,400,958
Total Liahilitles and Equity 11,540,687 0,950 437

The annexed notes frorn 1 to @ form an mtegral part of these fnancial gatements

Thesa fnancn| staternents were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Septamber 2022 and authonised for 1zmue and signed on

itz behalf by
Deculigned by

EQEDTTISEAFF .
Director

Company registered ramber: 120332
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREEHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note . | el 2021
15h 15D
Operating Revenues
Investment management and advisory fees from thind parties 4 17,934 563 18599369
Total operating rvenies 17,934,583 18599362
Cperating Expenses
Sub-advisory fets with thard parties (2,125,733 (1,225,899)
Sub-advisory fees with group undentakmngs (13, 544,757) (15,228,787)
Citheer operating and admenistrative expenses 245 193) (227 55T)
Total operabing eqenses (15.915713) (16 683 24 1)
Operating Profit 2,018 870 1916127
Other (Expenses)
Het foreign exdange (oss) (28,749 (11,5000
Total cther mcomeferpenss (FET45) (11,500)
Profit Before Income Tax 1,920,121 1904627
Incomie tax expense 5 (365 0000 (182,200
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,555,121 1,722427
Cheer Comprehensr e Incorne for the year
Total Comprefensive Incorme for the year 1,555,121 1, 722427

All the Group®s operatsons are classabied as continuing

The snnewed notes Bom 1to 9 form an ntegral part of these favancial 2atements
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NIEKKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Share Eetained
Heme Capital Earnings Total
UsSh LAk K Ush
Balance at 1 April 2021 480,000 T 95T 2,400,557
Other comprehensive medme for the year - 1,555,121 1,555,121
Balance at31 March 2022 0,000 9476073 9956078

The annesed notes Form 1 4o 9 form an mtegral part of thesa Foarncis] gabements
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Cash Flows Trom Operating Activities
Frofit alter tax

Adjustments for

Het foregn exchange loss

Tax charge

Cperational cash fows before movements in
workmg capital
Chnnges in operating aseets and liab Dities

(ncreaself Decreage m recerables
Incregsef (Decrease) m payables
Income tix paid

Het Cash Generated from Operating Activities

et Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, begmning of the year
Effect of exchange rate fluctustions on cash held

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year

Note

140/202

022
—  USD

1,555,021

S8, T4
365,000

2018271

(132,044)
171,551
(475420

1582085

1,582,955

7,547,000

(23,745}

9431206

The anneed notes Bormn 1to 2 form an edegreal part of these faaneis] gatements
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1, 722427

11,500
182,200

1916127

W05, IeE
(3%4,011)
Q00,257

2.230,115

230,115
5 628,385
{11,500

547,000
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NIEKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 1 - General Information

ikl AM Clobal Cayman Lid *the Company™) and 22 asbadiey (ogether “the Croup™) are moorporated ad dormzaled m the
Cayman [slands The sddress of the regdered office 15 PO Box 3090T, Ugland House, South Church Strest, Grand Cyyman, Cayrran
Isisnds The prnepal actvibies of the Group and Company dunng the vesr wene the provizion of mv estrent advice and meedment
managemnent services bo thrd parties and other growp members

Node 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The pancipal acomntmg polices adopbed are 52t cutbelow

Basis of preparation

TheOroup and Cornparry's financial statements have been prepared m scoordance with Uk-adopted imemational acoounting gandards
(UK -adopted IFF.S) and IFRIC intempretations applicsble to compantes reporting under IFRS. As at 31 March 2022, the Company had
adopted all IFREs and interpretations that had been aued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("LASE") and International
Financial Reportmg Interpretations Commmdtes ¢ FRICT) The sccountmg policies se out below have been spplied conngdently to all
periods presented m these fnsnceal staternents. [FRS: camprise sccambing sandards ismied by the LASE and ils predacessor body a2
well as interpretations issued by the IFRIC and its predecessorbody

In prepanng this set of fnancial daternents, the Company prepared pliusible downside scenanos such as reduction n ey enues due to
global mirket declmes resulbing from the pandemzc. The directors hive adopted the going concem basis of preparation i prepanng
these fmanicial statements for the follosing reasons: 1 the Company has sufficient capital ressrvec to with=tand several years of Josses,
1) the Cormpany has a highly hquid balance sheet with cash reserves at the year-end, and u1) the Cornpany’s fxed expenoe base 15
relatwely low. As a reml, the directors have o reasonable expectation that the Company has adequste resources to continue s
operatsons for at least 12 months from the date of these financial statements Therefore they contimae to adopt the going concem basis
in preparing theseaccounts.

Basis of consolidation

Subadianes are entities cortrolled by the Group, Contral exists when the Geoup has the power to govem the fmanasl and cperalmg
policies of an entity so asto cbtain benefits from its activities In assessmg control, the Group takes mto conmderation pobential votng
rights that are currently exencisable The acquisition date i3 the date on which contrel is transferred to the aoquirer, The financial
statements of subsidianies are neluded in the consolidated bnancial staternents froem the date that coatrol comnences unkil the date
that condrol omases Losses apphoableto the non-controlling interests in a subaidaary are allocabed to the non-controllng interests «ven
1f doing 5o cawses the non-controdling mterests o hav e & deficitbalance

New accounting standards adopted
The direchors donct consader that any new sccourthing sandards had & mabenal impact on the Cormpany in the airent year

Measurement conyention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention

Estirnates and asamaptions

The preparation of financial gatements requires the directors bo make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for
assets and liabalibies ag st the balanee sheet dste and the amounts reparted For revenues mnd expenses during the year The nature of
estimation means that actual cutoomes could differ from those estrnates The asumplions and egtimates, which are continucushy
reviewed, are based on pat ecpenence and other factors, meluding expectations regarding hikely developments in the future At 31
Mirch 2022 and 2021 there were no malenal estomate: o assimplions

Avcounts receivahle

Accaumntsrecevable inchide amounts dus formanagement, advisory and performance fees and amounts dus from customers and others
All accounts recervable are pepayable on demand or within one year. They are recorded m the balance sheet at cod, reduced by
appropraate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, and they are interest bearing

Accounts payahle

Accounts payable inchude amounts due for sub-advisory services and performance fees and amounts due to vendors and others. All
acoounts payable are classified according to the substance of the conbractual amrangement entered nto. They are payable on demand
or wihin one year and are recorded on the balance sheet at cost Anmounds owed to group undertalangs are unsecured, mierest free and
have no fived bermes of repayment.

Cush and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equmvalents comprise cash o banks snd i hand &nd shortdermn deposits with an onginal mahirty of three months o
legs and forerpn umenses held by the Geougr and Company. For the purposes of the cash flow gaternent, cash aned cash equivalents
conzist of cash and cagh equivalerts as defined sbove, net of cuttanding banl overdrafls

Operating revenues
Cperatimg reverues include inrestment management, myestment advisory and performance faes. Operabing revenes are measured at

the far value of the consuderation recerved or receiwable for services provided m the normal course of busmess, net of dsoounts, tral
foes, VAT and other sales related taxes
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NIEKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles { continued)
Operating revenues (continued)

Invesdtment sramagement and advisery fees and assocaated chargesare recogrised when the sevices concemad srerenderad Investrment
managemnent and adviscry fees are caloulated as a percentage of assets under management. Commissions are recognised on & trade
date basis, caloulated on a percentage of the mle Performance fees are recogrised m the period in which they become due and
collectable

Operating expenses
Cperating expenses are zecounted for when they become payable

Current and deferred come tax
Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and defermed tax. Tax 2 recogrussd in the statement of corpreheansme income
eteept to the extent that it relates b dems recopmsed dmectly in aquity, m whach cage # 12 recopnised m agquaty

Current tax 12 the expectad (o paysble or recenrable on the towable income or losz for the year, usng (e rates enacted or aubslantwely
enacted at the balance sheet date, and sy adpustment totax payable in respect of previcusyears

The Company may utilise cument tax cradits arising on losses in cther Group entities agamst its tax charges

Draferned tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverabie on differences bebween the carmying amounts of assets and labalities m
the staternent of financaal position and the comesponding bax bases used m the computation of taxable proft. Defemed tax 15 accounted
for using the statement of financial position liabality method Deferred ta lkabilities are generally recognised for all tacable temporany
differences and deferred tiw asssts are recognized to the extent that it iz probable that tawsble profite will be available against which
deductible ternporary differences can be utihized.

Foreign carrencies
The functional and presentational cusrency of the Group end Company 15 U2 dollars (8)

Transactions 1n currencies other than U3 dollars gre cecorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transadhions. AL
each balance shed date, monetary sssets and lisbilibesthat sre denommnated in foreign currencies ane retranslabed at the rates prevailmg
on the balance sheet date Non-monetary assets and habalities camrved at fair vakue that are denorminated mn formign curmencies ane
teanslated 3 the rabes prevaling at the dute when Fasr valus was determnined. Chures and logses asinng on retranslation are inchided o
net profit or loss for the pened, except for exchings differences anang on non-mondary asseds and hataldies where the changes in
Eaar walee are recogrised directly m squity.

Financlal instrurments
The vast ragority of the Company's Anancial ingrenents are cash and receivables which are mexsured at arncetised cost.

The Company has evaluated potential aredit losses on all financial assets that are measured at smorticed cost Factors considersd m
determining whether a default iz likely or possible inchude whether a payment iz overdue (and the length of that persod), any known
detenceatsion m the credit quality of a clientfoecunterparty or cther issues that could adversely affect a client’s'oounterparty’s cradit
qualiy

For fmancial assets where there 12 no known issues affecting coedit quallty, expected oredit loszes are caloulsted based on the losses
that are expected to be meurred over a rolling twebre-rmonth penod. Gaven the nature of the Company's Bnancial azsds (Le meostly
cazh atbank), there s avery bow credit rgk. The Commpiny 15 3150 consdermg thewse of money market funds to norease diversification
and further reduce credit sk

For any fmancul aceets where the contractual payment is moee than 30 days past due, the default pootion is to assume an increase m
aedit nisk Hewever, default levels in the past have beemn snmaterial and there were ne fee recerrables past due asat 31 March 2022

Investments n subsidiaries
Invezstments m subsidianes are dated in the parent company’ s balance sheel at codt bess any provisions for mgasmment

At each statement of financial posttion dabe, the Company reviews the carryng amounts of its investments to deterrmine whether

there iz any indication that thoee assets have suffered impairment 15 any =uch indication exists, the recorerable smount of the
invedtment is eimated m order to determme the extent of any impaiment
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
Note 3 - Investment in Sub sidiary

Ab 31 Murch 2022 and 31 March 2021 the Company had an e estment of $1. In the opanicn of the drectors, the Cormpany’ 5 mvestment
15 nct mpamed Details of the mv estment are as follows:

HNumber, class and

Coumtry of percentage of shares
Trpnctan —ncorportion  Princhpaladiviy —held by the Company,
Mikdco AM (Cayrran) Ltd Cl'ﬂf";‘:"; General partner 1 Ttw 0;?

The subgidhary's regridered address 12 190 Elgin Avens, Gebrge Town, Grand Cayman, Cayinan Izlands

Note 4 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All revernze relates to the provision of investment adv ice and v estment management services: In the following table, revenue 15
dizaggregated by peenary geographical market

Coumitry 2622 2021
15D USD
Cayman Islands 17,734,583 18,599,369

Note & — Taxation
Taxes on mecome for the year ended 31 darch 2022 were as follows:

2022 . i v |
s USD
Current Tax
UE comporation bax at 19%% (2021 19%%) based onnet pevenue % (3650000 F {153, 200%
Total Current Income Tax Expense (365,000} {182,200}
Total Income Tax Expense S Gespon § _ Eaaon

A reconcilistion betwesn the amount of tax expense at the effective stalutory rate and taves on income &= reflectad in contirning
opatzons for the years ended 31 hdarch 2022 and 2021 15 presented below

Tax Reconciliation

Profit befors taxes (2021 Profit before tax for pered Ot 21 —Mar 22) £ 1920122 % 958,553

Profit multiplied by the fandard rate of composation tase e the TR 1984

(2021; 1995 —(FER000) (L2000
2002 2021

Total Income Tax Expense (365.000) {152 200

EfTective tax rate for the vear 19.0%% 19.00%

In the 2021 Spring Budget, the Govemment announced that from 1 Apnil 2023, the mamn rate of UK corporation tax rate will increase
to 25%. This was substantively enacted in May 2021 and will have a conzequential effect on the Company's future tax charge The
Cormpany nfends bo utilise current tax credst froem ofher entities in the wider Nikko Group in the yesr to offset the Company's current
tax expense The amount due to afilistes for group tiee relef i2 included a2 a payable m the staternent of financaal position
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NIKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 6 — Financial Risk Factors

The Croup snd Company’s finameal instrarments comprize cash and cadh equavalents and recemable and payable balances that ase
froen A2 dmly operabions All cash and cash equivalents are carmied ab cost which is considerad bo sppresirnate to fair value duets the
shert term matusity of these financial mstruments The mam nsks associated with the Growp and Company’ s financial assets and
Tiabalities are set out below

Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 defined as the rige of financial less dus to a counterparty’s fashare to honour s obligation principally in relation to
transactsons where the Group or Compary prosides goods or sarvices on deferred terms and where it invests or deposits surphus cash
The Group or Company o not believe that they sre materially exposed to credit risk as its sales deblors are managed group funds and
therefore rnanagement and performance fees receivable are govemed by its agreements with these linds Tomubigate any remdual nge
of these aszets fahng to be delvrered, the Group and Company ensure that the tesms of these agreements in relataon Lo payments of
managemnant and perforrnance foas are adhered bo by monftorng its sged debtor snalpsis againg the agreed service level agresments.

Thedroup and Company adapts the policy of deabing with customers of sppropriate credit history, Forother financial asests the Group
and Cormpany adopts the policy of dealing with fmancaal metibutions and cther counterparties with high credit ratings Thee &re no
financial assets past due and f or mpased a5 ab 31 March 2021 and 2020 Trade recervables are due ab least quarterly, and ane nommally
settled withm 30 days of thewr dus dabe There are no overdus trads recen ab les at the balance sheet date.

Further, with regard bo bk deposits, the Group md Company only deposits money with spproved counteparties on agreed tems

Market risk

Market ride (or systemic risk) i defired as that ride which i3 corrmen to an entire class of azsets or labilities whereby theirvalue can
Ehucthte simply because of economis changes or other events that impact large portions of the market. The Group and Company do
not believe that they are exposed to matenal market mg: as the assetz the Group and Company manage are held by snd for the benefit
of fund holders through separate legal entitres.

Currency risk

Currency risk i dafined a5 the na hat the valoe of assets and labilitses deporenated in aireencies ofhier than e furctiona] aerensy
of the Company will dange m value dus to movenents in foragn enchange rates The Group and Company 15 exposed bo asrency
risk ansing from cash balance: and fses recervable i vanows curenaes

Lauring the year any foreygn exchange nsk on the Company's fees recetvable and payable 15 mitigated by the use of derwatve
indriments, speafaally foreard foregm exchange contracts

TheCompany' s total expeoaure to currency risk aricing from cash balances and fees receivable in ofher currencies, after forwand
exchange confracts, is 3441 503 (2021: $467,911) Asat 31 March 2032, had these currencies srengthened! weakened by 10% againd
the U0, the total egposure would have been higher Mlower by spprox £44, 120 (2021 $46,721)

Liguidity risk and financial sobvency risk

Liquidity ridk 1z defined a2 the rack that the Group or Company will not be able to meet £2 financial chligations a2 they fall due The
Oroup and Coerpany” npprmdi to rransging this rk i 1o ensure that it hae sufficient liquadity to meet its habalities when due, both
under normal and dressed oomditions

Capital management

The Group and Company capital pesibion 12 mertored on an ongoing basis Lo enmare tat 12 adequate. There are no ademally
imposed capital requirements.
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Note 7 — Related Party Transactions

NIEKQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Transachions bebwesn the Growp and Company and relabed parties are dizclosed below

Year ended 31 March 2022

Hikko Asset Management Armericas, Inc
HNikko Asset Management Eupope Ltd
Wik Aseet MManagement Co , Lid
Mikdeo Aot Mumagement Asia Ld
Mikko Asset Minagement Hong Kong
Highwater Lirruted

Total

Year ended 31 March 2021

Hikdeo Asset benagement Americas, Ine
Wikdko Ascet bdanagement Eurcpe Lid
Mildeo Asset Manngement Co, Lid
Hikko Asset Management Asia Lid
Hikko Azset Management Hong Kong
Highwater Lamited

Total

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
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Operating Creditor as at 31
Expenses (a} March 2022{h}
UsD UsD
1453613 474,263
731313 IL0EeE
342954 246312
1,227 ,93% 95759
110,482 2865
106,055
13,650,882 1357007
Operating Creditor as at 31
Expenses (a) March 2021 ()
UsD usD
1422718 120,838
£,2089427 720,542
3,786,710 210,852
1,556,076 120,670
164 636 10,393
106,470
15,336,257 1L1B3 495

(ay Operating expenses paid to related parties ape payable under invedtment managernent agresments and are for fund managerment

b

(b} The amounts cutstandug, i the above table relate bo cpavabing expenses, are unasazed and will be sellled i cash Hoguarmbes:
hawe been gren or recesved. Mo provisions have been made fordoubtful debis mrespect of the amounts owed by related parfies

ey Amounts payable o affiliates relatng to group ta relief are not inchuded m the ameunts cutgandng inthe above table bt are
ncluded m the statement of fmancial positbion

Eemuneration of key management personnel 31 March 2022 was USEE0,000 2021 TS 30,0000

Mikko Asset Management Cio, Ltd 15 the intermediate parent company of the Company. Hikko Asset Managemnent Amerscas, Inc,
Mikko Aszet Management Europe Lid , Nikdo Asset Managemnent Azia Lid and Mikko Aszet Management Hong Flong are fellow
subsidianes of the Cornpany. Nideo Asset Management Co., Lid 15 an mdirect shareholder of the subsidianies. Highwater Limted
prow ide director, company secrdtarial and other services to Nikloo AN Global Cayrran Lid

MNote 8 - Ultimate Holding Company

The Cornpany” s srmediate parent 12 Widcke AL Global Heldings Limbed, & company located o the United Kmgdom The Copany
15 3 subsidsary undertakang of Surmitorms Mitan Trust Holdings, Ino whach 15 the wibmate parent company in Japan

The largest grovp in which the results of the Company are consolidated 15 that headed by Sumitomo Mitsus Trust Heldngs, Inc, 1-1-
2 Marunaechi, Chayoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan The conzobdated Foancial gaterments of thas group are avmlable to the publich

ki Mererer guth ol

Mote 9 — Subsequent Events

In Decerrber 2021, the directoes resclved to voluntanly wind up its subsidiary, Hikko AMd (Cayrnan) Limaed 1L was subsequently
deemried o be dizzolved by the Asmiaet Repigrant of Companes, Cayrren Islands on 2 May 2022 There were no other svents,
ubzequent to the taternent of firancial position date, which had an immpact on the consclidated snd mdividual fmancial atements of

the Cormpany
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2022 30

2022 30 2022 31
10,096,630 1,463,910 9,431,206 1,367,431
1,299,809 188,459 2,439,355 353,682
24,700 3,581 70,125 10,167
11,421,139 1,655,951 11,940,686 1,731,280
11,421,139 1,655,951 11,940,686 1,731,280
114,505 16,602 114,502 16,602
128,968 18,699 168,009 24,360
882,504 127,954 1,337,007 193,866
(83,206) (12,064) 365,000 52,921
1,042,771 151,191 1,984,608 287,748

480,000 2022 30
2022 31
480,000 480,000 69,595 480,000 69,595
9,898,368 1,435,164 9,476,078 1,373,937
10,378,368 1,504,760 9,956,078 1,443,532
11,421,139 1,655,951 11,940,686 1,731,280
144.99
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2022 30
2022 30 2022 31
6,439,970 933,731 17,934,583 2,600,335
6,439,970 933,731 17,934,583 2,600,335
(847,404) (122,865) (2,125,733) (308,210)
(4,845,798) (702,592) (13,544,787)  (1,963,859)
(11,426) (1,657) (24,386) (3,536)
(129,187) (18,731) (220,807) (32,015)
(5,833,815) (845,845) (15,915,713)  (2,307,619)
606,155 87,886 2,018,870 292,716
(84,865) (12,305) (98,749) (14,318)
(84,865) (12,305) (98,749) (14,318)
521,290 75,582 1,920,121 278,398
(99,000) (14,354) (365,000) (52,921)
422,290 61,228 1,555,121 225,477
422,290 61,228 1,555,121 225,477

144.99
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2022

2022

31

31

30
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2022 30
¢ >y ¢y ¢ >y c > Cc )y D
480,000 69,595 7,920,957 1,148,460 8,400,957 1,218,055
1,555,121 225,477 1,555,121 225,477
480,000 69,595 9,476,078 1,373,937 9,956,078 1,443,532
422,290 61,228 422,290 61,228
480,000 69,595 9,898,368 1,435,164 10,378,368 1,504,760
144.99
2022 30
2022 30 2022 31
606,155 87,886 2,018,871 292,716
(84,865) (12,305) (98,749) (14,318)
1,184,971 171,809 (132,044) (19,145)
(941,837) (136,557) 171,550 24,873
764,424 110,834 1,959,628 284,126
(99,000) (14,354) (475,422) (68,931)
(99,000) (14,354) (475,422) (68,931)
665,424 96,480 1,484,206 215,195
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
10,096,630 1,463,910 9,431,206 1,367,431

144.99
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2022 30
3096T
EU IFRS
IFRS IFRIC
2022 31 IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC EU
IFRS  1ASB
IFRIC
) )
)
12
2022 30 2022 31
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2022 30 2022 31
2020 10 19
2022
30 2022 31
30
2022 30 10
8,900
2022 30 2022 30
2022 30 a
@ ®) ®)
C ¢ ¢ C
687,959 97,843
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2,660,069 546,820

1,000,943 162,818

446,667 66,774

50,160 8,249

4,845,798 882,504

2022 31 2022 31
2022 31 a
@ ® ®
C O C O C O C O

1,453,679 474,263

7,323,113 520,898

3,429,574 246,312

1,227,939 86,759

110,482 8,865

106,095

13,650,882 1,337,097
(a
(b

http://www._smth.jp/en/
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@
FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2023 37,542,925 54 4,335
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2022 12 1,060,000,000 1,536 8,940
(©))
UFJ
2023 405
(O]
2023 173 63
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®
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
2022 12 658,000,000 954 342
@
90
@
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)
®
UFJ
JSDA
JSDA
)
©)
SEC
)
Q)
LLC
LLC
2002 11 2003 SEC
2016 LLC
LLC NB LLC NB
LLC LLC
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1.1 1993

1.2

1.3
(a

O

1.4

1.5 2022 12
3,224

1.6

2.1

CIMA

2.2

2.3

(a
(b

(a
(b
(c

1960

2020

2020

2020
2020

CIMA
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2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA

2.6

3.1

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA

CIMA

3.3

(a 80,000 CIMA 100,000

®

CIMA
3.4

2020 CIMA
CIMA

15

80,000 100,000
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5.1

5.2

5.3

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

CIMA

21
2006 12 27

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
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CIMA

21
CIMA
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CIMA
48
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5.4 CIMA CIMA 10

CIMA

5.5 CIMA CIMA

CIMA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

@i

(A 17
(B 12
I

5.6 CINA

5.7 CIMA

5.8 CIMA 24,390 30,488
8,536
36,585 42,682
8,536

6.1
(a

O

(c

«
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6.2

6.3

(e

(f

(9

(h
@

(k

d

(m

(n

(v

(vii

30

(a

O

(c

«

(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

150

20

(a

O

CIMA
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(c

«

(e 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3
CIMA
10
7.6
CIMA CIMA

7.7 CIMA 7.9

(a
(b

(c
«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7 CIMA CIMA

(a CIMA
(b CIMA
(c
(d CIMA CIMA
7.9 1.7 CIMA
(a b)
a)
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(b

(c

«

(e
7.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA
7.11 CIMA
7.12  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CIMA

7.13  7.9(e)
7.14 7.13
7.15  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

(a CINA CIMA

() CIMA

CIMA

(c
7.16 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
7.17 7.15

(a CIMA

(b

(c

«

(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
7.18 CIMA 7.17

7.9
7.19
7.20 7.17(c)
7.21 CIMA
a)
CIMA
8.1 CIMA
8.2 8.1
500

CIMA

CIMA
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the
““Series Trust””), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2023, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2023, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
~ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to
be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors™ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such

opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-

related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 16, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (““the company””) for the
year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-
statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Parent Company ”s affairs as at 31 March
2022 and of the Group®s profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 21 June 2022. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
Group and the Company®s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are
no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going
concern period”?).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and Company ”s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate;

we have not identified, and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group®s
or the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud.

Reading Board meeting minutes.
Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company®s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company®s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

189/202



EDINETOOOO
Do000000000000000000(E27078)
o o o o o
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,

an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors® Report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group®s and the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been

released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company ”s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.
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Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the

time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

Date: 20 September 2022
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the
““Series Trust””), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2022, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2022, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
~ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to
be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors™ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such

opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-

related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 26, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (““the company””) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-
statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Parent Company ”s affairs as at 31 March
2021 and of the Group®s profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)*?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
Group and the Company®s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are
no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going
concern period””).

In our evaluation of the directors ™ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and Company *s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company ”s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate;

we have not identified, and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group®s
or the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are

not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
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Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud.

Reading Board meeting minutes.

Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors” Report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group®s and the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company ”s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
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so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability

in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

Date: 3 December 2021
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